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IN THE MATTER OF THE CORONERS ACT 1988

-and-

IN THE MATTER OF THE DEATH OF DR DAVID KELLY

To Her Majesty’s Attorney-General

THE HUMBLE MEMORIAL OF DR STEPHEN FROST

SHEWETH:

1. Your memarialist is Dr Stephen Frost. He acls as meamorialis as the
lead representaiive of a group of four other eminent doctors: Dr David
Halpin; Or Christapher Burns-Cox; Dr Martin Birnstinal; and Or Andrew
Rouse.

2, On 18 July 2003 = the date of the discovery of the body of Dr Kelly =
Lord Falconsr of Thoroton, then both Secretary of State for
Constitutional Affairs and Lord Chancellor, (in his capacity as Secretary
of State for Consftitutional Affairs) appointed Lord Hutton, a2 Lord of
Appealin the ordinary, to chair an ad hoc non-statutory judicial inguiry
into the circumstances surrounding the death of Dr Kelly (“the Hutten
Inguiry™).

3. 0n 21 July 2003, at the Oxiardshire Coraners Cour, an inguest was
cpened by Micholas G. Gardiner, one of Her Majesty’s Coroners (‘the
Caraner’), touching the death of Dr Kelly. At this date, the final
conclusions of pathologist, Or Micholas Hunt, who conducied the post-

Region: Europe
Theme: Law and Justice


https://www.globalresearch.ca/author/c-stephen-frost
https://www.globalresearch.ca/region/europe
https://www.globalresearch.ca/theme/law-and-justice

maoriemn on Or Kelly's body, were not available and so the hearing was
adjournad.

, The Huton Inguiry opened on 1 August 2003 with the terms of
reference  “urgently 10 conducl  an  invesligation into  the
circumstances surrounding the death of Dr Kellv”. Full hearings in the
Hutton Inguiry then began on 11 August 2003,

. On 12 August 2003, Lord Falcomer, this time in his capacity as Lord
Chancallor, invoked s17A Coronars Act 1983 and the Coroner, Tinding
no exceptional reason to the contrary as requirad by that stalutory
provision, adjourned the inguest into Dr Kelly's death pending the
outcome of the public inguiry.

. On 28 January 2004, Lord Hutton formally deliverad his repor to iha
Secretany of State for Canstitutional Alfairs. From the evidence heard
by him, Lerd Hutlon adoplad the conclusions of the Home Offica
pathologist, Dr Micholas Hunt, Following his examination of the scene of
the discovery of Dr Kelly's body and subsequent post-mortam: that the
cause of Dr Kelly's death was as recorded on the death certificata:

") Haemarrhage

1(b} Incised wounds to the left wrisl.

2 Co-proxamel ingestion and coronary artery atharosclerosis”

Accordingly, the primary cause of death was said (o have been tha
bleeding caused by culs to Dr Kelly's lefl wrist, not the ingestion of
coproxamol or coronary artery atherosclerosis. A copy of the death
cerificate can be found at Appendix 1.

. On 16 March 2004, the Coronar held 2 Turher haaring o determing iha
auestionunders17aid) Coroners Act 1995 as to whather there existzd
any excepﬁnnal reason for resuming the inguest fallowing 1he



conclusions reachead by Lord Hutton and approved by the Lord
Chancellor. At that hearing, at which only the Ministry of Defence and
ihe Hutton family were represented, the Coroner concluded — in a
hearing lasting no more than 15 minutes - that there ware no such
exceplional reasons and did not resume the inquest.

Central premise:
a. a Tailure to pursue available lings of inquiry &t the inquiry and the
gxistenca now of new evidence means that a full inquast is “necessarny

or desirable in the inferesiz of justice™,

b. the non-statutory Hutton Inquiry established by the Secretary of State
for Constitutional Affairs and commended te the Coroner by the Lord
Chanceller (in realty, the same person} a5 an adequate means to
satisfythe requiremeants of a Coronialinquestunders17A Coroners Act
1988 was notin fact an adequate inquiry;

c. fthe conclusions of the Hutton Inquiry, which were accepled by the
Coroner without a substantive hearing, were not the result of a full,
frank and fearless” investigation. Had the Inquiry bean so, much of the
evidence now available could have been put before and taken into
consideration by Lord Hutlon;

d. the Coroner refused to resume the inguest and rejected relavant
evidence following the findings of the Hutton Inguirs despite
representations made and evidence submitted to him as fo the

exceplional reasons why aninguest should in fact be held; and

&, upon a review of the evidence now available, thare was insufficient
evidence available to the Huton Inguiry at the time to reach the
conclusion that Or Kelly had delibarately Killed himsell and hat the
primary cause of death was, as recorded on the death cerificate:
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(b} Incised wounds to the left wrist”

Your memerialisi and his colleagues therefore humbly pray that you be
pleased to use your discretion under 513 Coroners Acl 1988 and thereby
make an application to the High Court of Justice to requira that a full and
proper inguest be held. By the discovery of new facls and evidence,
Insufficiency of the previous inguiry, rejection of evidence and due o
procedural irregularities of a matarial nature in the inguiry, the Coroner's
proceadings and (potentially) the gathering of the evidencs relizd upon in the
Hutton Inguiry, it is in the interesis of jusiice that the High Court directs a full
inguest be held touching the death of Dr David Kelly.

The arguments below are set out as follows:;
Pags Paragraph

Section?  Faclual background
Seclion 2 Leqgal principlas
seclon 3 Evidence before Lord Huttan

atthe time of the inguiry
Seclion 4 Arguments and evidence asto

tng needfora new inguest
Section & Conclusions

Section 1 — Factual backaround

1. Dr Kelly was an eminent government sclentist of excepfional
knowledge, skill and experence spacializing in biological we apons who
was employed by the Ministry of Defence. Ha was the governmeant's
most sanior scientist and weapons inspactor and had the highest
possible security clearance available (for both the United Kingdom and
United States). A copy ofthis is to be found at Appendix 2. He had also
formerlyworked as a weapons inspecior for the United Mations. In Juby
2003, Dr Kelly's name was |eaked to the press as the source of a story
broadcast by the BEBC about the Brilizh government's dossier on
weapons of mass destruction in Irag. On 15 July 2003, Dr Kelly was



summaoned fo appear before the Pariamentary Foreign Affairs Select
Committee which was investigating Britain's path o war with Iraq.

.20 17 July 2003, Dr Kelly worked at home in Oxfordshire before
leaving at around 3pm to go for a walk, as he did on a daily basis.
When he had not returned by around midnight, his wife, Mrs Janice
Kelly. reported him missing.

. 0Onthe morning of 18 July 2003, Dr Kelly's body was discovarad in an
area of woodland called Harrowdown Hill around & mile frem his home
by two members of 3 s2arch party 52t up after he had been reponed
missing.

. The Home Ofice pathologist, Or Hunt, was called to the scene by the
Thames Valley Police on tha same day, 18 July 2003, Or Hunt carried
out investigations of the scene betwsen 12.10-12.35pm and 2.10-
7.19pm. He then conducted a post-mortam examination of Or Kelly's
body at the moriuary at the John Radcliffe Hospital, Oxford, betwean
9.15pm that evening and 12.15am onthe moming of the 19 July 2003,

. A death cerificate in Dr Kally's name was registered on 18 August

2003 with the primary and secondary causes of death staled as
follows:

"(a) Hagmorrhage,

b} Incised wounds to the left wrist.

2 Co-groxamel ingestion and coronary artery atherosclerosis™

G. Dr Hunt was then called a5 a witness by Lord Hutten at the Huttan

Inguiry and gave evidencs on 16 Seplember 2003, A transcript of the
evidence provided by Dr Hunt can be found at Appendix 3.
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7. As stated above, on 28 Januany 2004, Lord Hutton then formally
delivered his report to the Lord Chancellor. He concluded that the
causa of Dr Kelly's death was suicide by "haemarrhage due to incised
wounds of the leftwrist” in combinationwith "coproxamol ingestion and
coranary arlery alherosclerosis™ that is 1o say thal Dr Kally bled 1o
death as a result of the injuries o his left wrist.

8. Amid growing suspicions among doctors that the cause of death
evidencad by Dr Hunt and provided in his repon by Lord Huthon was
imprabable, wewrale, in Decamber 2009 and on behalf of Dr Frost and
his colleagues, to the Coroner to seek disclosure of the medical
records and post-mortem documenis and pholographs relating Or
Kelly's death. In January 2040, the Coroner refused our request for
disclosure, He also revealedthat, sometime after the conclugion of his
inguiry, Lord Hutton had taken the highly unusual step, in secret, of
recommending that the records be protected from disclosure or
publicaticn for 70 years from the dale of the inguiry. Copies of this
comespondence are provided at Appendix 4.

9. There followed some media coverage of this surprising revelation and,
on 26 January 2010, Lord Hutton himself made a public statement to
various news broadcasters that he would advise the Ministry of Justica
to disclosea the post-mortam report to the doctors. Theraafter, wea wrota
1o he Secretary of Stale for Juslice seeking disclosure of this and
addifional documentation. The text of Lord Hulion's statement is
provided at Appandix 5 and coples of our correspondence with the
Ministry of Justice are provided at Appendix 6.

10.5ince this ime, in The Sunday Times on 22 August 2010 (copy
provided at Appendix 7}, Dr Hunt has taken the highly imegular step of
Speaking 10 the media to provide Turher, more d2tailed information
relating to the post-mortem examination and condition of Or Kelly's
body than that provided to e Hutton Inquiry in 2003, 1t is highly
irregqular for a Home Office pathologist such as Dr Hunt to discuss with
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the meadia his findings after the conclusion of the inguisition into a
death — Rule 10 (2) of the Coroners Rules states that “unless
authorised by the coroner, the person making a postmorem
examination shall not supply a copy of his reporn to any person other
than the coroner”. Although Or Hunt has not in fact provided (to vour
memarialist's knowledge) a copy of the post-montem repor to any
other party, he has ostensibly made these staternents on confidential
matiers without the required permission of the Coroner and in breach
of the Home Office Code of practice and performance standards for
forensic pathologists.

11.These matters - together with a range of other serious concerns with
the sufficiency of the Hutton Inquiry, the apparentirregularity of several
elements of the Huttan Inquiry procesdings (incleding questions aver
its walidity as a form of post-mortem inguisition), the myriad of
unanswered and unsatisfacterity answered questions, rejection of
evidence by the Coroner and new expen evidence (all of which are
treated in detail in Section 4 below) = create serious doubt as fo
whethar sufficlent evidence existad atthe time of the Hutton Inguiry to
enable Lord Hutton legilimately to arrive at the conclusion that Dr Kelly
committed suicide or died as a result of the primary cause of death
recorded on his death cerificate. There is therefore an urgent nead for
the inquest which the refused - without examining the evidence -
refused to resume in March 2004 to be quashed and a naw ingueast
ordered under a new Coraner in order to assess the evidence in full,

Section 2 — Leqal principles
12.This memorial requasiing that you make an application to the High
Court to quash the inguest which should have been resumsad daspite

the invocalion of alternalive proceedings under s17A Coroners Act
1988 is brought under Section 13 of that Act. We setthis oui here:-

13, — (1) This seciion applies whera, on an application
by or under the suthornty of the Aftorney-General, the



High Court is satisfed as respecls & coroner (he
coroner concerned’) either—

(al that he refuses or neglects fo hold an inguest which
ought to be held; ar

(b} where an inquesthas been held by him, that {whether
by reason of fraud, refection of evidence, irregularity of
proceadings, insuficiency ofinguiny, the discovery of new
facts or evidence or otherwisel i /s necessary or
degirable in the interests of justice Mat another inguest
should be heid,

(2) The High Court may—

(&) grder an inguest or, &s the case may be, another
inguest to he heid into the death elther—
(il by the coraner concerned; or
{fi} by the coroner for another disirict in the same
administralive area;

(b) grdgr the coroner concemed o pay such costs of and
incidental to the application as to the court may appear
just and

{c) where an inguest has been held, quash the inguisition
on thatinguest,

13.Reference is also made to the recent case of R (on the application of
Syloyic) v HM Coronar for Morthern District of Greater London: Sutoyic
v H Coroner for Modh London (2006) EWHGC 1095 [Admin]. It is
submitted that Sytoyic is & case within which the prnciplas of 513
applications are correctly restated by Moses LJin his judgment.

o



14.1n Sytovic, the Claimantwasthe mother of a young man who had died
in Serbia. The mother of the Claimant was unhappy with the
investigationsthathad ocourrad in Serbia and withthe inquestihat had
happened in this country. In Sutoyjc the Claimant succassfully
petiioned for the inquest to be re-openad. The claim was brought by

way of Judicial Review aswell as application under 5.13.

15.In considering the 5,12 claim in Suteyic, Moses L) made the following
ahservations: “The factors of central imporance are an assessmeant of
the possibility (as opposed to the probability) of & different oulcome,
the number of shorcomings in the onginal inquest and the need o
investigate matiers raised by new evidence which had not been
investigated at the orginal ingues® (para, 54). Moses LJ also restates
the conclusion found Iin B v West Sussex Coroner, ex parte Edwards
[1991] 156 JP 186, that * a newinguestmay be ordered even ifthens is
a high probability that the cuicoms will be the same.” (para 54).

16.This staternent echoes the findings of Woolf LJ (a5 he then was)in Be
Rapier (1998] 1 QB 26. Woolf LJ found that, *in many cases . {fwill
be guile impossible to say what will be the effect ofthe new evidence
v However, whalaver the oufcome, it still may be in the interests of
justice that their evidence should be explored in public before a june”
20, A review of fhe authorities also damonstrates ihat it is not
necessary forthe naw evidence being profferad to have been available
at the time of the criginal inguest. In Ba: Fletcher (1992) 156 JP 522 it
was held that new expert reports based on evidence available atthe
time of the initial inquest did constitute naw evidence.

17.A5 set out in 51301 0b) Coroners Act 1998, the body of new expen
evidence now available, the insufficiency of the initial inquiry atthe first
instance, the irregularify of proceedings, rejection of evidence and
refusal of the Coroner o hold a substantive inquast mean that it is in
tha interests of jusiice for there to be a full, frank and fearlass inguest.
It is submittzdthat, had this evidence bezn available to the Coroner al



9and 10

the time of the initial inquisition, had the inguiry made been sufficient
and had the proceadings not been tainted with irregularity, there is a
strong probability (although that is not the test) that Lord Hutton (and
tharefore the Corener) would have recarded a different outcome. This
new evidence therefare deserves to be heard.

18 Although aware that, in this context, the application they are making is

10 yoursell as Allorney-Genaral rather than 1o the police or 1o he
Coroner, Dr Frost and his colleagues, as medical professionals, are
particularly sensitive to the common law duty incumbent on every
citizen 1o report any inTormation likely to lead to an inguest. As stated
by Dame Janet Smith al page 520 paragraph 19126 of the Third
Report of the Shipman Inguiry:

Al present, all Citizens are under a commaon 3w duly 1o report
o the palice or corener any information likely 1o lead Lo an
inquast. The existence of this duty is not well known, although
everyone knows that they should report suspiclons of crime to
the polica. | recommend thal the Caranar Service should 522k
to educate the public about the functions of the Service and, at
the same time, encourage members of the public to repart any
cancerns about a death”

19.The Altorney-General will note that the common law duly refers to a

duty to report the information which might lead to an inquest to the
corener ar the police. However, given the fact that the Caraner RimseIr
has already s2en fil not to resume the inguest despite the exceplional
reasons provided by Or Frost and his colleagues as to why it should be
resumed (of which more below) and to reject any further calls for the
resumptian of his inquest, and that Thames Valley police concludead, at
a wvary early stage, thal Dr Kelly's death did no warrant a full murder
investigation, the doctors take the view that the reporting (again) of
their concerns ta these bodies would prove Tutile and 5o humbly direct
their report 1o you by way of this memaorial.

10
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20.0r Frost and his colleagues therefore consider it their legal and ethical
duty to provide you with this memorial, the more so due to their
qualifications and positions as medical professionals with the highest
expertise an the matters of central concermn 1o the medical issues 1o be
addressed in this memaoral. In pulting Torward this memanal, the
doctors consider of great significance the recommendation made by
Dame Smith at page 520 paragraph 19,128 of the Third Repornt of the
Shipman Inquiry that:

‘In my view, there should be a statutory duty on any
qualified or responsible person o report to the Coroner
Senvice any concern relating to the cause or crcumstances
of a death of which s/he becomes aware In the course of
his/ner duties. In the class of 'qualified’ persons, | include
doctors, nurses, midwives and paramedics. In the class of
‘responsible’ persons, | include hospital and hospice
managers, registrars, care home owners and mManagers,
police afficars, firefightars. funsral direclors, embalmers
and mortuary technicians. The duty upon such a persan
should e 1o report 10 a Coraner or corgner's investigator,
as soon as practicable, any information relating to a death
believed by that person to be true and which, if trug, might
amount to evidence of crime, malpractice or neglect™

The individual and colleclive expertise of Dr Frost and his colleagues
places each in Dame Smith's class of "qualified” persons and it is their
submission that the information contained In this memaorial and
appendices constitutes information which “might amaount to evidence of
crime, malpractice or neglect”.

Section 3 = Evidence before the Hutton Inquiry and the Coroner

11
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21. A full transcript of the Hulton Inquiry hearings is available at

hitp:ifvrwiw.the-hutton-inguiry. org.ukfcontent'hearing_trans. htm -
nowever, Tor present purposes, only the ranscript of the evidence
given to the inguiry by Dr Hunt is included with this Memornal (at

Appendix 3)

22 .In summary, Dr Hunt reported and concluded as follows:

a

he examined the body and the scene from 12 10pm — 12.35pm
and from 2.10pm = 7.19pm on 18 July 2003,

he found three blister packs with 2 combined capacity of 30
tablets of coproxamaol in Or Kelly's jacket pocket which contained
only one tablet;

there was some bloodstaining over the trousers and in particular
aver the right knee; the heaviest staining was over the lef anm,
including within the jacket. the most ebvious area of bloodstaining
was around the left wrist, where it was relatively heawy; there was
an area of blogdstaining 1o his len side munning across the
undergrowth and the soil over an area of 2 to 3 feet in length
maximLm;

there was a Sandyvig gardening knife whose Dlade and handle was
stained with blood next to Dr Kelly's left side;

he took a rectal body temperature reading of 24 Celsius at 7.15pm
an 18 July 2003 and concluded that, using a particular technigue
of estimating time of death on the basis of rectal temperature, Dr
Kelly must have died between 4.15pm on 17 July and 1.15am on
18 July,

he then examined the body in the mortuary at the John Radcliffe
hasplital between 9.20pm on 18 July 2003 1o 12.15am on 19 July
2003,

there was a series of cuts of varying depths over the front of the
lefi wrist, the largest and deepest of which had severad the uinar
arery,

there were no signs of defensive injuries;

| 12



I.  umbeknownstto Or Kelly, he had atherosclerosis (coronary artery
disease) but there were no signs that he had suffered a heart
attack:

j.  there was “no great volume” of tablet material in the stomach but
taxicology showed that dextropropoxyphens, an opiate type drug,
and Paracelamol were presentin his blogd and stomach contents,

k. that Or Kelly's speclacles were on the ground next 1o the body,
that the relatively passive distnbution of blood; that the neat way a
water baottle and its top were placed; that there was little sign of
trampling of the undergrowth; and that the location was a “very
pleasant and private spot” all indicated that this was an act of self-
harm,

I thal Dr Kelly died as a resull of haemorrhage as a resull of the
incised wounds on his 12 wrist hastened by the presence of
dextropropoxyphene in his blood and underlying coronary artery
disease;

m. fthat there was no pathological evidence to indicate third parly
invoivement in Or Kelly's death.

Section 4 — Evidence and concems arlsing after the Hutton Ingquiry and

fallure to resume the “inguest”

23.Qverthe six and more years since the conclusion of the Hutton Inguiry,
Cir Frost and his calleagues have identified several questions under the
relevant legal heads in $1301)(D) Coroners Acl 1933 which, in the
interests of justice, require that an inguest now be held into Or Kelly's
dealn

Irregularities of procesdings
24.1t is your memznalist’s contention that the investigation into the death
of Or Kelly was flawed in a number af fundamental ways.

The rales of Lord Falconer of

|13



25.1n the first instance, altention is drawn o the role played in the
investigalive process by Lard Falconer of Thorolon. As previously
indicated, Lord Falconer, at the relevant lima and throughaut he period
Between July 2003 and the end of March 2004, fulfilled two roles wilhin
aovernment: he was bolh Secretary of State for Constitlutional AfTairs
and Lord Chancealler.

26,0n 18 July 2003, in his position as Secretary of State Tor Constitutional
Afrairs, Lord Falconer announced his decision that a public inguiry
wauld be held into the circumstances surrounding Cr Kelly's death. The
inguiry arcered by the Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs and
to be conducted by Lord Hutton {and whose parameters and powers
were ldid down by the same Secretary of State) was not a public
inquiry called under the Public Inguiries Act 1921, It was an ad hoo
nion-statutory judicial inguiry ordered under the inherent powers of the
Secretary of State. It was therefore able only to address those matters
which Lord Hutton deemed fell within the very limited range of the
terms of reference provided to him and lacked the statutory powers
available to the chair of public inguiries established under the Public
Inguiries Act 1821,

27 Astonishingly, Lord Hutton, the judge charged with chairing the inquiry,
had never sal as a Coroner or had any judicial involvemeant in Coranial
proceedings and had conducted only one previous, minod public
incjLiry

28 Following the commissioning of the Hutton Inguiry by Lord Falconer in
his rele of Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs, Lord Falcaner
then {in his role as Lord Chancellor) stepped in to the proceedings
commenced by the Coroner on 21 July 2003 to invoke his powers
under 5174 Caroners Act 1988 to ensure that the Coroners inguest
was adjourned pending the ocutcome of the inguiry. As such, the
Caroner's jurisdiction to  investigate, in the normal way, this
unexplained and unnatural death was ousted by Lord Falconer through

14
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Lhe use af his powers in his dual reles. The use ol these powers Lo oust
the Coroner's jurisdiction was then compounded upon the conclusion
of he Hutien Inguiry when, again under ine s17A Coraners Act 1958
procedure, Lord Falconer (as Lord Chancellor) declared himself
satisfied with the conclusions reached by Lord Hutton, thus requiring
the Coroner W find "exceplional reason” nol La reésumse his inguest. The
memanalist contends that this use by one individual of the powers of
wa  positions within  the governmental exXecutive represenis a
fundamental irregularity in the proceedings by which Dr Kelly's death
was investigated, through the exclusion of the statutory powers
available to a publicinguiry under the Public Inquiries Act 1921 and the
Coroner's powers under the Coroners Act 1988 and the Coroners
Rules 1984,

The application of 5174 Coroners Act

20 Furthermare, the memorialist calls into question the propriety of the
invacation of s17A Coroners Act 1988 by the Lord Chancellor in this
instance. ILis submitted that the parliamentary purposs in enacting this
provision was to enable the Lord Chancellor, in particular cases of
public impontance, to intervens and to ensure that, in the public
interest, an investigation is carried out into a death {or deaths) which
goes beyond the remit of the Coronial jurisdiction but which still allows
that “the death in question is likely to be investigated adequately by a
judicial inquiry set up to inquire into the wider events in which the death
oooummed” (see exiract from Hansard at Appendix 3)

30.The provision had previously been Invoked ininguines, for example,
inta the Ladbrake Grove rail crash and the Shipman inquiry. Each of
these nad been cases involving multiple deaths and each was a
statutery public inguiry under the Public Inquiries Act 1921, However,
in establishing the public inquiry on an ad hoc non-statutory basis
rather than under the auspices of the Public Inquines Act 1921, Lord
Falconer, as Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs, instigated a
leszer inquiry than would have been carmed out had an inquest or

| 15



statutory inquiry been held: the Hulton Inguiry was manifestly relatively
powerless and lacking invastigative bite when compared to its statutory
gquivalent or Coronial proceedings, It is particularly fo be noted that,
although the terms of refarence set down by Lord Falconer required
Lord Hufton “to conduct anm  invesligalion inte the
circumstancas surrounding the death of Or K2y, no provision was
madeinthe farms of referancafora proparinvestigaticninto the causa
of death, a guestion which would have been fundamental fo Coronial
proceadings yet was manifestly lacking from the instruclions to the
Hutton Inquiny

31.Additionally, Lord Hutton, whilst a serving judge at the fime of his
appointment and during the period he was taking evidence. However,
he themn retired on 11 Januwary 2004 before reporting as a former judgea
om 28 January 2004. & must therefore be asked whether the
requirements of 5174 Coroners Act 1988 — which reguire a judicial
inquiry— have beenfulfiled giventhat, atthe conclusion of the judicial
inguiry called by Lord Falconer, Lord Hutton = the judicial chair of the
inquiry —was no longer a serving judge.

32 The ad hoc, non-statutory Huiton Inguiry was therefore an
inappropriate imrestigative vehicle for Lord Falconer, Lord Chanceallor
to adopt for use under s17A Coroners A 1988 and did nol, as

required, reprasent an adequate alternative form of investigation inta
the death to Coronial proceedings, It is therefore submitted that a full,

open inquest under the Coroners Act 1988 must now be held.

Inadequacies of proceedings in the Hulton Inguiry

33.Moreover, as the Hulion Inguiry was veny hastily called and conducted,
and no full inguest ever held, the procsedings lacked the formal
preparatery proceedings which would certainly have followed had the
mattar been heard in the Coronars Courts, as should have been ihe
case, such pre-inquest proceedings (and, in pardicular, pre-inguest
reviews) are essenlial, amongst other mallars, in establishing the

@
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invaolverment of properly interested persons, defining the scope, depth
and breadth of the inquestinvestigation and whether or not it would be
appropriate for the Coroner to empangl a jury. The lack of these pre-
inquast proceedings, the exclusion of potentially propery interested
persons from the normal Coronial processes by the exclusion of the
Coroner's jurisdiction and the fact of the terms of referance being sat
down by the Secretary of State, all point 1o a highly ireguiar set of
proceadings leading to an inevitably insufficient inguiry.

34 The exclusion of the Coronial jurisdiction by the Secretary of State and
his decision to call a public inguiry outside the auspicas of the Public
Inquiries Act 1921 also had the effect of meaning that witnesses did
not provide their evidence under oath and therefore on pain of
contempt of court. 511 (2) Coroners Act 1988 states:

“The coroner shall, at the first sitting of the inquest, examine
on oath concerning the death all persons who tender
evidence as o the facts of the death and all persons having
knowledge of those facls whom he considers it expadient to
gxamine.”

This irregular featura of the procedure adopted in the Hution Inguiry
again undermines the integrity of the evidence presented to Lord
Hutton and inherently thereforathe conclusions he reaches, giving rise
to a requirement of a fullinquest into the circumstances and causes of
Or Kelly's death with the benefit of the usual rules of evidence in fha
Coroners Courts.

35 Moreover, the fact_of the inapplicability of the Coroners Court also had
the fundamental impact of denying to Lord Hutton the power to compel
witnesses available to Coroners in nomal inquest proceadings. As
such, Lord Hutton was prevented from examining witnesses —includng
Dr Kelly's dentist, who was not called despite it being reported that Dr
Kelly's dental records went missing from her practice very shorly after

=l
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hiz death andthen reappeared days later) and Superintendent Young,
head of the Thames Valley Folice's investigative team = and thus from
drawing aut potzntially vital evidancs as 1o the extent and nature af the
polica investigation Into Or Kelly's death.

36.The lack of applicability of the rules of evidence of the Coroners Cour
also had the consequence that the evidence provided by witnesses
was not tested in the normal way through cross-examination by the
representatives of other properly interested persons to the
procsedings. Evidence was accapled, with miner clarifications only, at
face value and without challenge, just one flaw In the procedural
framework of the Hutton Inquiry which had the consequence of
rendering the inquiry insufficient in i#s breadth, reach and
thoroughness.

37_Asignificant instance of the failure to cross-examine, leaving important
evidence untested. is to be found in Lord Hutton's treatment of Dr
Kelly's alleged ingestion of coproxamal prior 1o his death. It was
assumed that, as Mrs Kelly had been prescrbed coproxamaol, the
emply blister packs of these tablets found in Dr Kelly's jacket pocket
must have balonged to her. However, this was never establishad
adegquataly at the inquine. It was not establishad whether Mrs Kelly
would normally have had such a number of tablets, whether she had
recenlly oblained a repeat prescription or when and from where the
tablets had been dispensed.

38 More significantly, however, the evidence of the toxicologist, Dr Alex
Allan, as io the ingestion and the levels of Paracetarnol and
dextropropoxyphene in Orkelly's blood after death were not subjected
to scrutiny. The blood concentrations detecled in Dr Allan's report
indicales a level above the tharapeutic but below the laxic range.
Howaver, ha finds thal the residue of enly 1/5 of a tablet was found in
Oir Kally's stomach. The timing of tha tests is unknown, a5 15 the time of
death, Eolh are essential inreaching any conclusions as fo the levels
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in Dr Kelly's blood at the time of his death and therefore his intenfion or
othenwise to Kill himself, clearly of fundamental significance inreaching
a verdict of suicide. However, Dr Allan was not pressed on such
matters, nordid Lord Hutton look into them in any altemative manner,
leaving a significant gap in the forensic analysis which would be
necessary to enable Lord Hutton safely o arrive at the conclusion he
did. That such is the case was demonstrated clearly when, in
September 2004, ihe British Medical Journal forensic exparis remarked
that the level of Paracetamol and dextropropoxyphene in Dr Kelly's
blood should not have been taken as an accurate indicator of the
amount allegedlyingested DrFmost and his colleanues highlighted this
in a lefter to The Guardian newspaper on 28 September 2004, a copy
of which is included at Appendix 9 to this memaorial.

29.A further fundamental element which stood to be provad on the basis
of the evidence before Lord Hutton &t the inguiry in order to reach the
conclusionthat Dr Kelly had killed himselfis the specificintentto do so.
Lord Hutten safisfied himsealf of this on the basis of the evidence of
Professor Hawton at the inquiry. Howewver, in 50 doing, he failed
properly to engage with the possibility that Or Kelly had not in fact
intended fo kill himself, It is a fundamenial tenet of the recording of a
vardict of suicide in Coronial procsedings to prove bevond a.
reasonable doubt“intent to die®. Itis the memorialist's position that, on
the basis before Lord Hutton and in light of his failure to press
Professor Hawton on this point, that the requisite intent was not
apparentin Dr Kelly's actions priorfo the discovery of his body: he had
made plans te see his daughter on the evening of 17 July 2002 and
had not put his affairs in order. Further uncerainty is cast on the
guestion of intent to die by the unanswered questions, highlighted
above, in relation to the number of tablets of coproxamal allegediy
taken by Dr Kelly and the levels of Paracetamol and
dextropropoxyphens in his blood according to the toxicology reports.
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40 Moreover, recent lefiers from expert psychiatrists Professor Colin
Fritchard and Dr Phillip Timms have since highlighted respectively the
apparent lack of intent and moreoverthe very unusual mode of alleged
suicide apparent in this case: the cutting of one wrist. Copies of thesa
letters are attached at Appendix 10 and 11.

41.It is the memaoralists position that = given this failure propery to
angage with e question — tha finding of “intent to die” could not have
been reached on the evidence available to Lord Hutton and so the
verdict of suicide cannot be deemed to be safe.

The deaih cartifi

42 Since the conclusion of the Hutbon Inguiry and the closure of the
Caronial proceedings, it has become Enown that the final d2ath
certificate in relation to Dr Kelly's death was registered on 13 August
20032. This is despite the fact that the cause and circumstances of Dr
Kelly's death, the subject of the Hutlon Inguiry, had scarcely starlzd
hearing evidence and Dr Hunt, the Home Office pathologist who
carried out the post-moriem, had vet to provide his evidence to Lord
Hutton. Accordingly, it appears that the cause of death, which Lord
Hution was purporediytrying to esiablishthrough hisinguiry, had been
‘eslablished”-in private - and registered long before his findings were
published in January 2004, Additianally, It appears that this daath
ceriificate was registered without nofification to the inquiny or to the
public: no mention of its existence or registration was made during the
inquiry proceedings, norwas it presented in evidence.

43 Mareover, the death cerificate which was regislered was highly
irreqular. The proper form of the daath cenificatz i set out at Form 22
of Schedule 4 to the Coroners Rules 1984 It requires that the following
miatters be found (a5 relevant):

“(1) Mame of the deceased (if known):
(2) Injury or disease causing death:
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(3) Time, place and circumstances at or in which injury was
sustained
{4} Conclusion of the jury/coronar.,

The death cerificate completed in raspect of Dr Kelly's death, and
found at Appendix 1. cleardy fails to recard such information.

44 The place of death, required under (2) above, is not identified. In cases
where the place of death cannot be ascerained, it is normal practice
for the Coroner to make a statement on the death cedificate to this
effect. There is no such statement an Dr Kelly's death cerificate.

25 An inquest is said to have taken place on 14 August 2003 However,
although the inguest had been cpened and then adjoumned by the
Coraner, no inquest had yet been conduded and no verdict or findings
as to the circumstances of Dr Kelly's death reached or mads

46.The cerificate itselfis not signed by a Coroner or a doctor as reguired.
47 The date of death is given as 18 July 2003, despite the fact, detailed
below, that this is far from being clear, given the inexplicable and

considerable delay in taking the rectal body temperature.

428 For these reasons, the regulanty of the death cerificate is highly
questionable.

Irequlzrities in the Caronial proceedings

49 As indicated above, the Lord Chancellor stepped in, on 13 August
2003 and after the Coroner had opened proceedings in the Coroners
Court on 21 July 2003, to request that the Coraner's proceedings be
adjoumed under 517A Coroners Act 1988 pendingthe outcome of the
Hutton Inguiry. Mot finding any exceptional reason to refuse such a
recjuest, the Coroner propery adjoumed the inguest. However, the

memuarialist understands that, despite having adjoumned his inquest

=1
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and thereby surrendered jurlsdiction to investigatz, the Coronsr was
then invited a mesting with the Department for Constitutional Affairs at
which he askedfor permissiontotake further evidence fram Or Hunt in
private before recording a cause of death. If frue, this represents a
clear attempt by the Corener to resume his investigation onca
adjoumed unders17A Coroners Act 1988, That such a resumption was
attempted and that evidence may then have been faken in private =
and was not thean revealed by the Coroner on the resumption of the
inguest on 16 Karch 2004 = represants a significant irregularity in the
proceedings which casts doubt over the integrity of the decision of the
Coronar not to resume the inguest and thus requiring that a full, frank
and open inquest be held.

Oiher apparent ireqularities
50.1 is widaly known that, during his investigations, Laord Hutton visited
mrs Kelly at home. It is presumed thatthis was to take her evidence as
to the clrcumstances of Or Kelly's death and the days leading up to it.
Whilst this is not proscribed by the Coroner's Rules and cannot be
impugned as being an irregularity initself, itis a measure adopted only
in exceptional circumstances by a Coroner. Howaver, it would ba
imperative thata Coroner undertaking any such visit would then, in the
interests of justice and fransparency, provide details of that evidencein
opan Court. Following this meeting, Lord Hutton madea no mention and

provided no detail as to the content of the statement taken from Mrs
Kelly. As nothing is known of the substance or content of the meeling
held by Lord Hutton with Mrs Kelly, it is not possible to say definitively
whelher any evidence was taken in this meeting (although itis hard to
imagine that it was not) and thus not possible 1o say definitively
whether any irregularity therefare exists. Howewver, RMrs Kelly's
evidence as 1o Dr Kelly's slate of mind in the days leading up 10 his
death would, an any vigw, be consldered vital to a Coroner and, if any
was taken, it was absolutely contrary to the interests of justice If Lord
Hutton then failed to share its content with what was a public inquiry.
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The 70 vear recommendation
51.As5 previously indicated, it has emearged that, at some time afier tha

conclusion of his inguiry, Lord Huiton made a recommendation, in
private, the existence of which did not become known to the public until
January 2010, requiring that the materials relating to Dr Kally's death
and, in particular, the post-mortem photographs, reports and medical
notes should not be disclosed to the public wntil 70 years after the
conclusion of the inquiry (that is, until 2074}, This was a highly unusual
recommendation and nota power availabletoihe Coronerunder either
the Coronars Act 1988 orthe Coroners Rulesi1984. lis intended effect,
according to Lord Hutton, was to protect the Kelly family from further
upset whichmight be caused by those who might have wished furiher
to investigate Dr Kelly's death. However, its aciual effect has been that
of "suppressing’ from the public domain vital raw material information in
relation to Dr Kelly's cause of death and thus preventing any such
independant investigation. This secret recommendation for secrecy
and lack of transparency is highly irregular and would have been
impossible inthe context of Coronial proceedings. It was only possible
by virtue of the fact that the Hutton Inguiry was an inguiry called out of
the inherent power of the Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs
rather than the usual, inguisiterial Coronial proceedings or the much
more unusual statulory public inguiry under the Public Inguiries Act
1921 investigation, both of which are creatures of siatute and thus
governed by strict statutonr rules.

Insufficiency of inguiry
The reach of the Histlon Inguiry
52.The Hufton Inguiry was said by Lord Falconer (as Lord Chancellor) o
be adequate to salisfy the requirements of 2 Corenial investigation into
the death of Dr Kelly. Indasd, the public was lad to believe by Lord
Falconer that the powers and reach of the Hutton Inguiry would go
bevond those powers available to Coroners under the stalute and the
Coroners Rules in order 1o Jay bare the facls and circumstancas of Dr

(]
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Kelly's death, However, in assessing this statament against the facts
available, it is apparent that this has not been proved o be the case
and In fact serious doubls remain over whether key alemeants of the
duties of a Coroner were indeed fulfilled = and therefore whether an
adequate inquiny was aclually conducted — into Dr Kelly's death.

53.The Coroner's dulies at an inguest are set out at Rule 36 Coroners
Rules 1984

*(1) The proceadings and evidance at an inguast shall ba
directad solely to asceraining the following matters, namealy—
(a) who the deceased was:;
(D) howy, when and where he came by his death;
(c) the pariculars for the fime being required by the
Reaistration Acts to be registered.”

The information therefore required can be summarised as:
1) the Identity of the deceased,
2)the place the deceasad came by his death;
3) the time of death;
4)ihe causze of death;
5} a verdict as to by what means the deceased came by his
deatn.

54_In reviewing the findings of the Hutlon Inguiry: the place of Dr Kelly's
death is not stated; the fime of Or Kelly's death is recorded in very
broadterms and inreliance on evidence which iiself is tainted or at the
vary least rendared less accurate than it could have baen by
unexplained- andinexplicable — delay on the par of Dr Hunt; a cause
of dealh is recorded but, as set out by this memorial, this is now
subject to grave doubts, as is the “verdict” recordad by Lord Hutton of
suicide. As such, it cannot be said that the reguirements of the

Coronial process detailed sbove have been met, nor the Coraner's
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statufory duties fulfilled, by Lord Hutton's Inquiry at the behest of the
Secretary of State.

55 Moreover, it s evident, from the transcripts of the Hutton Inquiry
available atthe hyperlinkinciuded above under section 2, thatthe time
spent addressing the medical evidence in iha proceedings was
disproperionately insignificant in comparison with that spant on the
incidants leading up o Dr Kally's death. Including time qiven aver lo
taking evidence from the toxicologist, Or Alex Allan, approximately hall
of one day out of 24 full days of hearings was taken up by medical
evidence, As illustrated above, in relation to tha levels of Paracatamol
and dextropropoxyphene present in Dr Kelly's blood after death, the
manifest failure to engage sufficiently with or to t2stin any way the
medical evidence provided by Drs Hunt and Allan represents a
significant shorcoming in the adequacy of the investigation carried out
by Lord Huiton. The proper consideration and festing of medical and
toxicology evidence put ferward in suspicious cases such as thatof Dr
Kelly is cantral lo the Coroner’s investigations but in Lord Hulten's
invastigations, tha scrutiny to which it was subjected was unacceptably
limp.

S6.1t is further vour memerialist's case that vital witnesses who would
have been in a posiion to pravide valuable evidance to the Hulten
Inquirywere not callad and that the investigative funclion of the inquiry,
said by Lord Falconerfo be intendedfo be farther reaching than would
ba possible under the Coroners Act 1988, in fact fell far short of being
an adequate or sufficientinguiry into the circumstances surrounding Dr
Keliy's death.

&57.1t iz tharefore submitted that the conclusions reached by tha Huiton

Inguiry as to the cause of Dr Kelly's death cannot be considered safe
and hat a full Coronial inquest is essential.

The patholonist's examinafion of the scene and post-mortam examination
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38.In his evidence to the Hutton Inquirg, Or Hunt stated that he carmied out

3

o

the reclal body temperature measurement a1 7.15pm on 18 July 2003,
It is remarkable that this was some 7 hours after he was first given
access to the location where Dr Kelly's body was found (12, 10pm) and
some 5 hours after he was given access to canduct a full examination
of the scene (at 2. 10pm). This delay in taking the body's rectal
temperatura was not challenged by Lord Hutton. The significance of
this failure to seek an explanation for this delay lies in the fact that, as
the body cools after death, the langer the delay in taking the rectal
bady temperature, the wider the time-window within which death may
have occurred becomes, meaning that the accurate assessment of a
time of death becomes mare and mare dificult as time passes. A body
temperature reading taken several hours earier would have enabled a
more accurate time of death to have been ascertained, yet this was naot
done and the failure to do so went unchallenged at the hearings.

. Since the conclusion of the Hutton Inquiry, Freadom of Information Act

requests - made by MP Morman Baker in 2007 - have shown that the
knife with which Dr Kelly is alleged to have used to cul his wrist
showed no sign of Or Kelly's own — orindeed any — fingerpnnts. This is
despite there being no evidence that Or Kelly had been weanng gloves
prior to or during his alleged attempts to cut his wrist nor were any
dloves discoverad atthe scena. This was a curious point which would
have been apparent to Lard Hutton at the time of his inquiry had proper
investigation been made and one absolutely relevant to astablishing
whether Dr Keally did indead cut his left wrist in the way cancluded by
Lord Hutton

G0.0r Hunt's post-mortem led him to conclude that Dr Kelly died between

4.13pm on 17 July 2003 and 1.13am on 18 July 2003. However,
information obtained fram Thames Valley police by a Mr Garrick Alder
under an Freedom of Information Act request has indicated that a
police helicopter equipped with thermal-imaging technalagy flew over
the exact spot where Dr Kelly was assumed by Lord Hulton to have
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killed himsaIf at 2.50am on 18 July 2003 without detecting his body.
Although Assistant Chief Constable Michas| Page gave evidence othe
Hutton Inguiry indicating that a helicopter using thermal-imaging
technology had been deployed in the search, Lord Hulton did not delve
any further to establish the search routes of the helicopler or o
question why the thermal-imaging had apparently lailed to detect Dr
Kelly's bedywhich, at 2.50am, would have been substantially closer o
the normal body temperatura of 37 degrees Celsius than the 24
degrees Celsius recorded at 7.15pm the same day.

Rejection of evidence and refusal by the Coroner to resume the inquest

61.Upon considering and examining Lord Hutton's findings, published on
28 January 2010, Dr Frost and his colleagues very quickly came to the
view (for the reasons set out in the report of Dr Frost et al at Appendix
12) that it would have baen highly improbable for Dr Kelly 1o have died
frem the injurles sald to have been the cause of his death by
haemorrhage, As such, Dr Frost and several colleagues wrote on
several occasions and as matters of urgency to the Coroner, Mr
Gardiner, o express grave concems at the conclusions reached by
Lord Hutton and to present their professional view as to why the
conclusiens were incorrect and unsafe, A copy of this leter togeather
with copies of other relevantlefters, to which the Coroner did not reply,
arg attached at Appeandix 13.

62.0r Frost then wrote again to the Coroner in conjunction with 5 other
medical professionals expert in the relevant areas o present their
agreed view that the conclusions reached as to Dr Kelly's cause of
death and thereforethe conclusions of the Hutlon Inquiry should not be
accepted and that exceptional reasons existed as to why the Coroner
should hold & full Inguast into the daath. Again, no response was
received. A copy of this letter is enclosed at Appendix 14,

G3.Thereafter, on 16 March 2004, as already illustrated, Mr Gardiner held
a further haaring at which ha expressed the view that he was “happy”

a7
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with the conclusions reached by Lard Hutton's repart and that therefore
he saw no exceptional reasons, as requirad by 517AM4) Coroners Act
1988, to resume the inguest and thus concluded that he would not do
5.

64.The Coroner's refusal to respond to the letters of Dr Frost and his
fellow medical experts and his apparent refusal o consider the
avidence thay put befare him in deciding whethar ar not exceptional
reasons existed which dictated that he should resume the inquest
consiitutes a rejection of relevant and persuasive evidence which may
havemada a material and substantive differenca lo the oulcome of the
Coronial proceedings, had they been properly considered by the
Coroner in the exercise of his duty under s174A. If, indeed, he did
consider the letters sent by Dr Frast and his colleagues, the Coroner
made no mention of this In his heanng. Or Frest and his collzagues
also take the view that the Coroner's declarations had the effect of
giving the impression tothe publicthat Lord Hutlon's conclusions were
of the same quality as might be reached by the Corener himself.

65.FPerhaps most alarming, in this context, is the interview given by the
Caoroner to the Mail en Sunday in excess of two weeks prier to the
hearing at which he concluded his inguest in which he stated that he
was seeking “closura” to this matter, apparently indicating that he had
already reached the view that there ware no exceplional reasons for
continuing his Inguast despitz not having heard the parties at the
hearing andthe continuing representations of the doctors as to the fact
that the cause of death recorded and the conclusions of the Hutton
Inquiny were unsafe.

Mew evidence
66.5ince the conclusion of the Hutton Inguiry, Or Frost and a number of
eminantmedical professional colleagues have maintained fundamental
doubts as to the findings of the Hution Inquiry and, in paricular, the
meadical conclusions reached by the pathologist, DF Hunt. A copy of
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their medical report, signed by all, can be found at Appendix 12. They
conclude, in broad terms, that it would be highly improbable for Dr
Kelly to have died as a result of the pathological factors given by Dr
Hunt as the cause of death. They say, therefore, that the findings of
Lord Huttan are, therefore, at the very least unsafe

G7. Addtionally, and significantly, Or Hunt has, on 22 August 2010, come

forward in The Sunday Times to provide further information relating to
his examination of the scena at which Dr Kelly's body was found and
his post-mortem examination which is inconsistent with and goes
bevaond that he providedin evidence to the Huttan Inquiry. Mot only is
thiz highly irregular, it also confinms Dr Frost's concerns — sharad by
his colleagues = that the Hutton Inguiry did not go as far as would have
a Coroner's inquest in examining, testing and exhausting the evidence
provided by the witnesses he called

G8.In his evidence to the Hutton Inquiry, Or Hunt stated that there was:

“blondstaining on the clothes [...] including in the sleeve of the
Barbour jacket on the lefi. [...] There was some staining [...]
over the left armm. That was the heaviest staining, really,
including within the sleeve of the jacket. [...] The most obvious
staining was around the left wrist. [..] There was an area of
bloodstaining 1o his left side running across the undergrowth
and the soil and | estimated it was over an area of 2 to 3 fest

maximum in length”™.

However, in an interview given to the Sunday Times on 22 August
2010, Or Hunt is reported as sayingthat, “in actual fact there were big,
thick clots of blood inside the sleeve, which came down aver the wrist.
and a lot of blood soaked into the ground”. The later evidence would
appear to be inconsistent with that provided to the inquiry, as his
descrptions indicate that there was in fact a large quantity of blood
around and an DrEelly's body. It also goes further in suggesting that

24

| 29



“a lot of blood™ had "soaked into the ground”, that *[DC Coe and the
pararmedics] might not have seen it, but it was thare and | noted itin
my repor”. Mo evidence as to this was provided by Dr Hunt at the
Hutton Inquiry, nor has the post-morem report vet been made public,

69.0r Hunt continued by saying that he had looked “at every millimetre of
skin [...] Tar any punciure marks and so forth, any sign of skuldugagery
— between tha fingers, the toes. undar the nose, behind the ears, here,
there and evenswhere — to 522 if you can find someathing that's out of
kilter, There was nothing®, However, it is your memenialist's position
that, although there was a reported 'absence of evidence' of any foul
play (paricularly in the context of any needlamarks), this ‘absance of
gevidence” does not constitute 'evidence of absence’ and fthat
accordingly, proper Coronial assessment of the evidence provided by
Or Hunt and all the relevant witnesses 15 essentlal in carrying out an
adequate inguiry,

TO.Finally, Dr Hunt also provided additional evidence in relation fo the
alleged narrowing of Dr Kelly's coronary arleries to that he had
provided to the Hutton Inguiry. In The Sunday Times aricle of 22
August 2010, Dr Hunt provides informatien that bwa of Or Kelly's main
corenary arteries were 70-80% narower than normal, creaiing a
significant risk of cardiacarmrest “If he had dropped deadin the canfean
at Porfon Down and yvou had seen his coronary arteries, you would
have had a very good reason to believe that was the only reason he
died™. His condition is said by Dr Hunt to have greally reduced the
ability of nis heart to withstand sudden blood loss and alse mada him
maore susceptible to stress. The weight placed by Dr Hunt on the
coronary afery disease in more recent information he has provided is
in stark confrast to the evidence he gave o Lord Hulton in which he
indicated that this *may have played some small part in the rapidity of
death but [was] not the major part in the cause of death”.
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710t Is yvour memeralist's view that this sudden provision of fresh
evidence by Dr Hunt reflects an anxiety on the pathologist's part that
the evidence provided o the Hutton Inquiry in relation to the scene of
the discovery of Dr Kelly's body and in his examination of Dr Kelly's
body was insufficient to suppaort the conclusion he had reached as to
tha causa of death.

T2 Further fresh evidence has also been provided by David Barlleft, the
ambulance fechnician who arrived at the scene shority after the
discovery of Dr Kelly's body. Inan interview with The Mail on Sunday
an 12 Septembsr 2010 (which can be found at Appendix 15), Mt
Barllett stated that, on arriving at the scene, he noted that Dr Kelly's
“leftsleeve was rolled up and you could see a wound with some dried
blood around it”, This is in direct contradiction o the evidence providad
by Or Hunt fo The Sunday Times on 22 August 2010, in which he
stated that “there wara big, thick clats of blood inside the sleeve, which
came down over the wrisl” (emphasis added). This is an imporant
confradiction in evidence which was, again, not explored by Lord
Hutton in the inquiry and which raises questions both as to the
accuracy of the evidence provided by witnesses and also to the
sufficiency of the inquiry itself.

734 Bartlett then continued in The Mail on Sunday that, when he arrived
at the scane, Dr Kelly “was lying flat out some distance from the tree,
He definitely wasn't lz2aning againstit. [...] When | was there the body
was far enough awayfrom the tree for someone to gat behind IL | know
that because| stood there whenwe were using the electrodesto check
his heart. Later | l[earned that the dog team said they hiad found him
proppedup againstthe free, He wasn'twhen we gotihere, If the earier
witnesses are saying that, then the body has obviously been moved®,
The “earlerwitnessas” refamed to by Mr Bartlett are the searchears who
discoverad Dr Kelly's body, Louise Holmes and Paul Chapman, who
each gave evidence to the Hutton inquirythat Dr Kelly's body had been
found propped up against a tree.
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T74.0C Graham Coe, one of the group of Thames Valley police officers
first o arrive at tha scene, has also, in September 2010, provided
further information as to the evidenca he had providad to the Hutten
Inquiry. In evidence at 1o the Hutton Inquiry, DC Coe was clear in
stating that on the moming of the discover of Dr Kelly's body, he was
accompanied only a single colleague, DC Colin Shields. Howewer, in
an interview with the Daily Mail reported on 9 August 2010, DC Coe,
now retired, explains that there had been a frainee police officer
present with he and OC Shields. Although it is not clear as to whether
this new evidenca in itself is of 2 material nature, it again goss to the
point that the questioning to which Lord Hutton subjected witnesses
was less than thorough and reflects the palpable insufficiency of the
inifial inguiry. A copy of this article can be found at Appendix 16.

75.This new evidence, together with the expar opinion provide by Dr
Frost and his colleagues, raises significant new questions as o the
volume and distribution of blood atthe scene, whetherthe scane of the
discovery of Dr Kellv's bady had b2en disturbed prior to the armval of
sCEne examiners and, once more, the sufficiency of Lord Hutlon's
“In considering this provision [s13] it is not necessary to
show that a new inguest would reach a differant verdict,
only that it might do so. Even if a different verdict is not, in
fact, reached by a different coroner, #his would not negate
the request for a second inquest under 13 Coroner Act
1938 (see Re Rapier [1983] QB 26)".

TG, 15 submitted, in llght of the procedural deficizncias and insulficiency
of the investigation of the Hulton Inquiry, the rejection of evidence by
the Coroner on the Lord Chancellors communication to him of the
findings of the Hutton Inquiry and the compelling new evidence
provided in the form of the experi view of Dr Frost and his colleagues,
and for allthe reasons expounded above, that the conclusions reached
by Lord Hutton and adepted by the Caronar are not safe.
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Full report into the death of Dr David Kelly

77 _Moreover, for allthe above failings and reasans —and in paricular the

Coroner's gross failure to hold a substantive inquest into Dr Kelly's
death, as required by s2(1) Coroners Act 1988 — it is submitted that tha
Uniled Kingdom government has not, as yel, fulfilled its invesligative
duties under Aricle 2 of the European Comvention on Hurman Rights.

78.0r Frost and his colleagues take the view thal, in light of he

information presented in this memorial, compelling grounds exist for
the holding of a new inquestin order o reach accurate and empirical
conclusions as 1o the death of Dr Kelly. In the words of Christopher
Clarke QC, Counsel tothe Inquiry for the Saville Inquiry, “the tribunal's
task is to discover, as far as humanly possible in the circumstances,
the truth: not the truth as people see it, not the truth as people would
like it to be; but the truth, pure and simple, however complex, painful or
unacceptableto whomsoeverthat iruth may be. The truth has a light of
its own".

791t is consequently submitted that it |5 necessary and desirable in tha

imerests of justice for thare 10 be a fresh, Tull inguest into Dr Kelly's
death before a different Coroner. The memadalist therefore humbly
requests that the Attorney-General exerclse his power under 513
Coranars Acl 1988 to apply 1o the High Court to seek an order 1o
quashthe inguestheld by CoronerMicholas Gardiner in 2003-4 and to
order a new inguest into Dr Kelly's death,

By Daily Mail Reporter
Last updated at 10:45 AM on 13th December 2010
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IN THE MATTER OF THE CORONERS ACT 1938
-and-

IN THE MATTER OF THE DEATH OF DR DAVID KELLY

To Her Majesty’s Attorney-General

THE HUMBLE MEMORIAL OF DR STEPHEN FROST

SHEWETH:

1. Your memorialist is Or Stephen Frost. He acls as memorialist as the
|ead representative of a group of four other eminent doctors; Dr David
Halpin; Or Christapher Burns-Cox; Or Martin Birnstinal; and Or Andrew
Rouse.

2, On 18 July 2003 = the date of the discovery of the body of Dr Kelly =
Lord Falconsr of Thoroton, then both Secretary of State for
Constitutional Affairs and Lord Chancellor, (in his capacity as Secretary
of State for Consftitutional Affairs) appointed Lord Hutton, a2 Lord of
Appeal in the ordinary, to chair an ad hoc non-statutory judicial inguiry
into the circumstances surrounding the death of Dr Kelly (“the Hutten
Inguiry™).

3. 0n 21 July 2003, at the Oxlardshire Coraners Cour, an inguest was
opened by Micholas G. Gardiner, one of Her Majesty’'s Coroners (“the
Caraner’), touching the death of Dr Kelly. At this date, the final
conclusions of pathologist, Dr Nicholas Hunt, who conductad the post-
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maoriemn on Or Kelly's body, were not available and so the hearing was
adjournad.

, The Huton Inguiry opened on 1 August 2003 with the terms of
reference  “urgently 10 conducl  an  invesligation into  the
circumstances surrounding the death of Dr Kellv”. Full hearings in the
Hutton Inguiry then began on 11 August 2003,

. On 12 August 2003, Lord Falcomer, this time in his capacity as Lord
Chancallor, invoked s17A Coronars Act 1983 and the Coroner, Tinding
no exceptional reason to the contrary as requirad by that stalutory
provision, adjourned the inguest into Dr Kelly's death pending the
outcome of the public inguiry.

. On 28 January 2004, Lord Hutton formally deliverad his repor to iha
Secretany of State for Canstitutional Alfairs. From the evidence heard
by him, Lerd Hutlon adoplad the conclusions of the Home Offica
pathologist, Dr Micholas Hunt, Following his examination of the scene of
the discovery of Dr Kelly's body and subsequent post-mortam: that the
cause of Dr Kelly's death was as recorded on the death certificata:

") Haemarrhage

1(b} Incised wounds to the left wrisl.

2 Co-proxamel ingestion and coronary artery atharosclerosis”

Accordingly, the primary cause of death was said (o have been tha
bleeding caused by culs to Dr Kelly's lefl wrist, not the ingestion of
coproxamol or coronary artery atherosclerosis. A copy of the death
cerificate can be found at Appendix 1.

. On 16 March 2004, the Coronar held 2 Turher haaring o determing iha
auestionunders17aid) Coroners Act 1995 as to whather there existzd
any excepﬁnnal reason for resuming the inguest fallowing 1he
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conclusions reachead by Lord Hutton and approved by the Lord
Chancellor. At that hearing, at which only the Ministry of Defence and
ihe Hutton family were represented, the Coroner concluded — in a
hearing lasting no more than 15 minutes - that there ware no such
exceplional reasons and did not resume the inquest.

Central premise:
a. a Tailure to pursue available lings of inquiry &t the inquiry and the
gxistenca now of new evidence means that a full inquast is “necessarny

or desirable in the inferesiz of justice™,

b. the non-statutory Hutton Inquiry established by the Secretary of State
for Constitutional Affairs and commended te the Coroner by the Lord
Chanceller (in realty, the same person} a5 an adequate means to
satisfythe requiremeants of a Coronialinquestunders17A Coroners Act
1988 was notin fact an adequate inquiry;

c. fthe conclusions of the Hutton Inquiry, which were accepled by the
Coroner without a substantive hearing, were not the result of a full,
frank and fearless” investigation. Had the Inquiry bean so, much of the
evidence now available could have been put before and taken into
consideration by Lord Hutlon;

d. the Coroner refused to resume the inguest and rejected relavant
evidence following the findings of the Hutton Inguirs despite
representations made and evidence submitted to him as fo the

exceplional reasons why aninguest should in fact be held; and
e, upoen a review of the evidence now available, there was insufficient
evidence available to the Huton Inguiry at the time to reach the

condusiaon that Dr Kelly had delibarately Killed himsaIf and hat the
primary cause of death was, as recorded on the death cenificate:

@) Hasmornags
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(b} Incised wounds to the left wrist”

Your memerialisi and his colleagues therefore humbly pray that you be
pleased to use your discretion under 513 Coroners Acl 1988 and thereby
make an application to the High Court of Justice to requira that a full and
proper inguest be held. By the discovery of new facls and evidence,
Insufficiency of the previous inguiry, rejection of evidence and due o
procedural irregularities of a matarial nature in the inguiry, the Coroner's
proceadings and (potentially) the gathering of the evidencs relizd upon in the
Hutton Inguiry, it is in the interesis of jusiice that the High Court directs a full
inguest be held touching the death of Dr David Kelly.

The arguments below are set out as follows:;
Pags Paragraph

Section?  Faclual background
Seclion 2 Leqgal principlas
seclon 3 Evidence before Lord Huttan

atthe time of the inguiry
Seclion 4 Arguments and evidence asto

tng needfora new inguest
Section & Conclusions

Section 1 — Factual backaround

1. Dr Kelly was an eminent government sclentist of excepfional
knowledge, skill and experence spacializing in biological we apons who
was employed by the Ministry of Defence. Ha was the governmeant's
most sanior scientist and weapons inspactor and had the highest
possible security clearance available (for both the United Kingdom and
United States). A copy ofthis is to be found at Appendix 2. He had also
formerlyworked as a weapons inspecior for the United Mations. In Juby
2003, Dr Kelly's name was |eaked to the press as the source of a story
broadcast by the BEBC about the Brilizh government's dossier on
weapons of mass destruction in Irag. On 15 July 2003, Dr Kelly was
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summaoned fo appear before the Pariamentary Foreign Affairs Select
Committee which was investigating Britain's path o war with Iraq.

2. 0n 17 July 2003, Dr Kelly worked at home in Oxfordshire before
leaving at around 3pm to go for a walk, as he did on a daily basis.
When he had not returned by around midnight, his wife, Mrs Janice
Kelly. reported him missing.

3. Onthe morning of 18 July 2003, Dr Kelly's body was discoverad in an
area of woodland called Harrowdown Hill around & mile frem his home
by two members of 3 s2arch party 52t up after he had been reponed
missing.

4, The Home Office pathologist, Dr Hunt, was called to the scene by the
Thames Valley Police on tha same day, 18 July 2003, Or Hunt carried
out investigations of the scene betwsen 12.10-12.35pm and 2.10-
7.19pm. He then conducted a post-mortam examination of Or Kelly's
body at the moriuary at the John Radcliffe Hospital, Oxford, betwean
9.15pm that evening and 12.15am onthe moming of the 19 July 2003,

5. A death cerificate in Dr Kally's name was registered on 18 August
2003 with the primary and secondary causes of death staled as
follows:

"(a) Hagmorrhage,

b} Incised wounds to the left wrist.
2 Co-groxamel ingestion and coronary artery atherosclerosis™
G. Dr Hunt was then called as a witness by Lord Hutten at the Hutton

Inguiry and gave evidencs on 16 Seplember 2003, A transcript of the
evidence provided by Dr Hunt can be found at Appendix 3.

i

| 38



7. As stated above, on 28 Januany 2004, Lord Hutton then formally
delivered his report to the Lord Chancellor. He concluded that the
causa of Dr Kelly's death was suicide by "haemarrhage due to incised
wounds of the leftwrist” in combinationwith "coproxamol ingestion and
coranary arlery alherosclerosis™ that is 1o say thal Dr Kally bled 1o
death as a result of the injuries o his left wrist.

8. Amid growing suspicions among doctors that the cause of death
evidencad by Dr Hunt and provided in his repon by Lord Huthon was
imprabable, wewrale, in Decamber 2009 and on behalf of Dr Frost and
his colleagues, to the Coroner to seek disclosure of the medical
records and post-mortem documenis and pholographs relating Or
Kelly's death. In January 2040, the Coroner refused our request for
disclosure, He also revealedthat, sometime after the conclugion of his
inguiry, Lord Hutton had taken the highly unusual step, in secret, of
recommending that the records be protected from disclosure or
publicaticn for 70 years from the dale of the inguiry. Copies of this
comespondence are provided at Appendix 4.

9. There followed some media coverage of this surprising revelation and,
on 26 January 2010, Lord Hutton himself made a public statement to
various news broadcasters that he would advise the Ministry of Justica
to disclosea the post-mortam report to the doctors. Theraafter, wea wrota
1o he Secretary of Stale for Juslice seeking disclosure of this and
addifional documentation. The text of Lord Hulion's statement is
provided at Appandix 5 and coples of our correspondence with the
Ministry of Justice are provided at Appendix 6.

10.5ince this ime, in The Sunday Times on 22 August 2010 (copy
provided at Appendix 7}, Dr Hunt has taken the highly imegular step of
Speaking 10 the media to provide Turher, more d2tailed information
relating to the post-mortem examination and condition of Or Kelly's
body than that provided to e Hutton Inquiry in 2003, 1t is highly
irregqular for a Home Office pathologist such as Dr Hunt to discuss with

[55]
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the meadia his findings after the conclusion of the inguisition into a
death — Rule 10 (2) of the Coroners Rules states that “unless
authorised by the coroner, the person making a postmorem
examination shall not supply a copy of his reporn to any person other
than the coroner”. Although Or Hunt has not in fact provided (to vour
memarialist's knowledge) a copy of the post-montem repor to any
other party, he has ostensibly made these staternents on confidential
matiers without the required permission of the Coroner and in breach
of the Home Office Code of practice and performance standards for
forensic pathologists.

11.These matters - together with a range of other serious concerns with
the sufficiency of the Hutton Inquiry, the apparentirregularity of several
elements of the Huttan Inquiry procesdings (incleding questions aver
its walidity as a form of post-mortem inguisition), the myriad of
unanswered and unsatisfacterity answered questions, rejection of
evidence by the Coroner and new expen evidence (all of which are
treated in detail in Section 4 below) = create serious doubt as fo
whethar sufficlent evidence existad atthe time of the Hutton Inguiry to
enable Lord Hutton legilimately to arrive at the conclusion that Dr Kelly
committed suicide or died as a result of the primary cause of death
recorded on his death cerificate. There is therefore an urgent nead for
the inquest which the refused - without examining the evidence -
refused to resume in March 2004 to be quashed and a naw ingueast
ordered under a new Coraner in order to assess the evidence in full,

Section 2 — Leqal principles
12.This memorial requasiing that you make an application to the High
Court to quash the inguest which should have been resumsad daspite

the invocalion of alternalive proceedings under s17A Coroners Act
1988 is brought under Section 13 of that Act. We setthis oui here:-

13, — (1) This seciion applies whera, on an application
by or under the suthornty of the Aftorney-General, the
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High Court is satisfed as respecls & coroner (he
coroner concerned’) either—

(al that he refuses or neglects fo hold an inguest which
ought to be held; ar

(b} where an inquesthas been held by him, that {whether
by reason of fraud, refection of evidence, irregularity of
proceadings, insuficiency ofinguiny, the discovery of new
facts or evidence or otherwisel i /s necessary or
degirable in the interests of justice Mat another inguest
should be heid,

(2) The High Court may—

(&) grder an inguest or, &s the case may be, another
inguest to he heid into the death elther—
(il by the coraner concerned; or
{fi} by the coroner for another disirict in the same
administralive area;

(b) grdgr the coroner concemed o pay such costs of and
incidental to the application as to the court may appear
just and

{c) where an inguest has been held, quash the inguisition
on thatinguest,

13.Reference is also made to the recent case of R (on the application of
Syloyic) v HM Coronar for Morthern District of Greater London: Sutoyic
v H Coroner for Modh London (2006) EWHGC 1095 [Admin]. It is
submitted that Sytoyic is & case within which the prnciplas of 513
applications are correctly restated by Moses LJin his judgment.

o
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14.1n Sytovic, the Claimantwasthe mother of a young man who had died
in Serbia. The mother of the Claimant was unhappy with the
investigationsthathad ocourrad in Serbia and withthe inquestihat had
happened in this country. In Sutoyjc the Claimant succassfully
petiioned for the inquest to be re-openad. The claim was brought by

way of Judicial Review aswell as application under 5.13.

15.In considering the 5,12 claim in Suteyic, Moses L) made the following
ahservations: “The factors of central imporance are an assessmeant of
the possibility (as opposed to the probability) of & different oulcome,
the number of shorcomings in the onginal inquest and the need o
investigate matiers raised by new evidence which had not been
investigated at the orginal ingues® (para, 54). Moses LJ also restates
the conclusion found Iin B v West Sussex Coroner, ex parte Edwards
[1991] 156 JP 186, that * a newinguestmay be ordered even ifthens is
a high probability that the cuicoms will be the same.” (para 54).

16.This staternent echoes the findings of Woolf LJ (a5 he then was)in Be
Rapier (1998] 1 QB 26. Woolf LJ found that, *in many cases . {fwill
be guile impossible to say what will be the effect ofthe new evidence
v However, whalaver the oufcome, it still may be in the interests of
justice that their evidence should be explored in public before a june”
20, A review of fhe authorities also damonstrates ihat it is not
necessary forthe naw evidence being profferad to have been available
at the time of the criginal inguest. In Ba: Fletcher (1992) 156 JP 522 it
was held that new expert reports based on evidence available atthe
time of the initial inquest did constitute naw evidence.

17.A5 set out in 51301 0b) Coroners Act 1998, the body of new expen
evidence now available, the insufficiency of the initial inquiry atthe first
instance, the irregularify of proceedings, rejection of evidence and
refusal of the Coroner o hold a substantive inquast mean that it is in
tha interests of jusiice for there to be a full, frank and fearlass inguest.
It is submittzdthat, had this evidence bezn available to the Coroner al
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9and 10

the time of the initial inquisition, had the inguiry made been sufficient
and had the proceadings not been tainted with irregularity, there is a
strong probability (although that is not the test) that Lord Hutton (and
tharefore the Corener) would have recarded a different outcome. This
new evidence therefare deserves to be heard.

18 Although aware that, in this context, the application they are making is

10 yoursell as Allorney-Genaral rather than 1o the police or 1o he
Coroner, Dr Frost and his colleagues, as medical professionals, are
particularly sensitive to the common law duty incumbent on every
citizen 1o report any inTormation likely to lead to an inguest. As stated
by Dame Janet Smith al page 520 paragraph 19126 of the Third
Report of the Shipman Inguiry:

Al present, all Citizens are under a commaon 3w duly 1o report
o the palice or corener any information likely 1o lead Lo an
inquast. The existence of this duty is not well known, although
everyone knows that they should report suspiclons of crime to
the polica. | recommend thal the Caranar Service should 522k
to educate the public about the functions of the Service and, at
the same time, encourage members of the public to repart any
cancerns about a death”

19.The Altorney-General will note that the common law duly refers to a

duty to report the information which might lead to an inquest to the
corener ar the police. However, given the fact that the Caraner RimseIr
has already s2en fil not to resume the inguest despite the exceplional
reasons provided by Or Frost and his colleagues as to why it should be
resumed (of which more below) and to reject any further calls for the
resumptian of his inquest, and that Thames Valley police concludead, at
a wvary early stage, thal Dr Kelly's death did no warrant a full murder
investigation, the doctors take the view that the reporting (again) of
their concerns ta these bodies would prove Tutile and 5o humbly direct
their report 1o you by way of this memaorial.

10

| 43



20.0r Frost and his colleagues therefore consider it their legal and ethical
duty to provide you with this memorial, the more so due to their
qualifications and positions as medical professionals with the highest
expertise an the matters of central concermn 1o the medical issues 1o be
addressed in this memaoral. In pulting Torward this memanal, the
doctors consider of great significance the recommendation made by
Dame Smith at page 520 paragraph 19,128 of the Third Repornt of the
Shipman Inquiry that:

‘In my view, there should be a statutory duty on any
qualified or responsible person o report to the Coroner
Senvice any concern relating to the cause or crcumstances
of a death of which s/he becomes aware In the course of
his/ner duties. In the class of 'qualified’ persons, | include
doctors, nurses, midwives and paramedics. In the class of
‘responsible’ persons, | include hospital and hospice
managers, registrars, care home owners and mManagers,
police afficars, firefightars. funsral direclors, embalmers
and mortuary technicians. The duty upon such a persan
should e 1o report 10 a Coraner or corgner's investigator,
as soon as practicable, any information relating to a death
believed by that person to be true and which, if trug, might
amount to evidence of crime, malpractice or neglect™

The individual and colleclive expertise of Dr Frost and his colleagues
places each in Dame Smith's class of "qualified” persons and it is their
submission that the information contained In this memaorial and
appendices constitutes information which “might amaount to evidence of
crime, malpractice or neglect”.

Section 3 = Evidence before the Hutton Inquiry and the Coroner

11
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21. A full transcript of the Hulton Inquiry hearings is available at

hitp:ifvrwiw.the-hutton-inguiry. org.ukfcontent'hearing_trans. htm -
nowever, Tor present purposes, only the ranscript of the evidence
given to the inguiry by Dr Hunt is included with this Memornal (at

Appendix 3)

22 .In summary, Dr Hunt reported and concluded as follows:

a

he examined the body and the scene from 12 10pm — 12.35pm
and from 2.10pm = 7.19pm on 18 July 2003,

he found three blister packs with 2 combined capacity of 30
tablets of coproxamaol in Or Kelly's jacket pocket which contained
only one tablet;

there was some bloodstaining over the trousers and in particular
aver the right knee; the heaviest staining was over the lef anm,
including within the jacket. the most ebvious area of bloodstaining
was around the left wrist, where it was relatively heawy; there was
an area of blogdstaining 1o his len side munning across the
undergrowth and the soil over an area of 2 to 3 feet in length
maximLm;

there was a Sandyvig gardening knife whose Dlade and handle was
stained with blood next to Dr Kelly's left side;

he took a rectal body temperature reading of 24 Celsius at 7.15pm
an 18 July 2003 and concluded that, using a particular technigue
of estimating time of death on the basis of rectal temperature, Dr
Kelly must have died between 4.15pm on 17 July and 1.15am on
18 July,

he then examined the body in the mortuary at the John Radcliffe
hasplital between 9.20pm on 18 July 2003 1o 12.15am on 19 July
2003,

there was a series of cuts of varying depths over the front of the
lefi wrist, the largest and deepest of which had severad the uinar
arery,

there were no signs of defensive injuries;
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I.  umbeknownstto Or Kelly, he had atherosclerosis (coronary artery
disease) but there were no signs that he had suffered a heart
attack:

j.  there was “no great volume” of tablet material in the stomach but
taxicology showed that dextropropoxyphens, an opiate type drug,
and Paracelamol were presentin his blogd and stomach contents,

k. that Or Kelly's speclacles were on the ground next 1o the body,
that the relatively passive distnbution of blood; that the neat way a
water baottle and its top were placed; that there was little sign of
trampling of the undergrowth; and that the location was a “very
pleasant and private spot” all indicated that this was an act of self-
harm,

I thal Dr Kelly died as a resull of haemorrhage as a resull of the
incised wounds on his 12 wrist hastened by the presence of
dextropropoxyphene in his blood and underlying coronary artery
disease;

m. fthat there was no pathological evidence to indicate third parly
invoivement in Or Kelly's death.

Section 4 — Evidence and concems arlsing after the Hutton Ingquiry and

fallure to resume the “inguest”

23.Qverthe six and more years since the conclusion of the Hutton Inguiry,
Cir Frost and his calleagues have identified several questions under the
relevant legal heads in $1301)(D) Coroners Acl 1933 which, in the
interests of justice, require that an inguest now be held into Or Kelly's
dealn

Irregularities of procesdings
24.1t is your memznalist’s contention that the investigation into the death
of Or Kelly was flawed in a number af fundamental ways.

The rales of Lord Falconer of
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25.1n the first instance, altention is drawn o the role played in the
investigalive process by Lard Falconer of Thorolon. As previously
indicated, Lord Falconer, at the relevant lima and throughaut he period
Between July 2003 and the end of March 2004, fulfilled two roles wilhin
aovernment: he was bolh Secretary of State for Constitlutional AfTairs
and Lord Chancealler.

26,0n 18 July 2003, in his position as Secretary of State Tor Constitutional
Afrairs, Lord Falconer announced his decision that a public inguiry
wauld be held into the circumstances surrounding Cr Kelly's death. The
inguiry arcered by the Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs and
to be conducted by Lord Hutton {and whose parameters and powers
were ldid down by the same Secretary of State) was not a public
inquiry called under the Public Inguiries Act 1921, It was an ad hoo
nion-statutory judicial inguiry ordered under the inherent powers of the
Secretary of State. It was therefore able only to address those matters
which Lord Hutton deemed fell within the very limited range of the
terms of reference provided to him and lacked the statutory powers
available to the chair of public inguiries established under the Public
Inguiries Act 1821,

27 Astonishingly, Lord Hutton, the judge charged with chairing the inquiry,
had never sal as a Coroner or had any judicial involvemeant in Coranial
proceedings and had conducted only one previous, minod public
incjLiry

28 Following the commissioning of the Hutton Inguiry by Lord Falconer in
his rele of Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs, Lord Falcaner
then {in his role as Lord Chancellor) stepped in to the proceedings
commenced by the Coroner on 21 July 2003 to invoke his powers
under 5174 Caroners Act 1988 to ensure that the Coroners inguest
was adjourned pending the ocutcome of the inguiry. As such, the
Caroner's jurisdiction to  investigate, in the normal way, this
unexplained and unnatural death was ousted by Lord Falconer through

14
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Lhe use af his powers in his dual reles. The use ol these powers Lo oust
the Coroner's jurisdiction was then compounded upon the conclusion
of he Hutien Inguiry when, again under ine s17A Coraners Act 1958
procedure, Lord Falconer (as Lord Chancellor) declared himself
satisfied with the conclusions reached by Lord Hutton, thus requiring
the Coroner W find "exceplional reason” nol La reésumse his inguest. The
memanalist contends that this use by one individual of the powers of
wa  positions within  the governmental exXecutive represenis a
fundamental irregularity in the proceedings by which Dr Kelly's death
was investigated, through the exclusion of the statutory powers
available to a publicinguiry under the Public Inquiries Act 1921 and the
Coroner's powers under the Coroners Act 1988 and the Coroners
Rules 1984,

The application of 5174 Coroners Act

20 Furthermare, the memorialist calls into question the propriety of the
invacation of s17A Coroners Act 1988 by the Lord Chancellor in this
instance. ILis submitted that the parliamentary purposs in enacting this
provision was to enable the Lord Chancellor, in particular cases of
public impontance, to intervens and to ensure that, in the public
interest, an investigation is carried out into a death {or deaths) which
goes beyond the remit of the Coronial jurisdiction but which still allows
that “the death in question is likely to be investigated adequately by a
judicial inquiry set up to inquire into the wider events in which the death
oooummed” (see exiract from Hansard at Appendix 3)

30.The provision had previously been Invoked ininguines, for example,
inta the Ladbrake Grove rail crash and the Shipman inquiry. Each of
these nad been cases involving multiple deaths and each was a
statutery public inguiry under the Public Inquiries Act 1921, However,
in establishing the public inquiry on an ad hoc non-statutory basis
rather than under the auspices of the Public Inquines Act 1921, Lord
Falconer, as Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs, instigated a
leszer inquiry than would have been carmed out had an inquest or
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statutory inquiry been held: the Hulton Inguiry was manifestly relatively
powerless and lacking invastigative bite when compared to its statutory
gquivalent or Coronial proceedings, It is particularly fo be noted that,
although the terms of refarence set down by Lord Falconer required
Lord Hufton “to conduct anm  invesligalion inte the
circumstancas surrounding the death of Or K2y, no provision was
madeinthe farms of referancafora proparinvestigaticninto the causa
of death, a guestion which would have been fundamental fo Coronial
proceadings yet was manifestly lacking from the instruclions to the
Hutton Inquiny

31.Additionally, Lord Hutton, whilst a serving judge at the fime of his
appointment and during the period he was taking evidence. However,
he themn retired on 11 Januwary 2004 before reporting as a former judgea
om 28 January 2004. & must therefore be asked whether the
requirements of 5174 Coroners Act 1988 — which reguire a judicial
inquiry— have beenfulfiled giventhat, atthe conclusion of the judicial
inguiry called by Lord Falconer, Lord Hutton = the judicial chair of the
inquiry —was no longer a serving judge.

32 The ad hoc, non-statutory Huiton Inguiry was therefore an
inappropriate imrestigative vehicle for Lord Falconer, Lord Chanceallor
to adopt for use under s17A Coroners A 1988 and did nol, as

required, reprasent an adequate alternative form of investigation inta
the death to Coronial proceedings, It is therefore submitted that a full,

open inquest under the Coroners Act 1988 must now be held.

Inadequacies of proceedings in the Hulton Inguiry

33.Moreover, as the Hulion Inguiry was veny hastily called and conducted,
and no full inguest ever held, the procsedings lacked the formal
preparatery proceedings which would certainly have followed had the
mattar been heard in the Coronars Courts, as should have been ihe
case, such pre-inquest proceedings (and, in pardicular, pre-inguest
reviews) are essenlial, amongst other mallars, in establishing the

@
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invaolverment of properly interested persons, defining the scope, depth
and breadth of the inquestinvestigation and whether or not it would be
appropriate for the Coroner to empangl a jury. The lack of these pre-
inquast proceedings, the exclusion of potentially propery interested
persons from the normal Coronial processes by the exclusion of the
Coroner's jurisdiction and the fact of the terms of referance being sat
down by the Secretary of State, all point 1o a highly ireguiar set of
proceadings leading to an inevitably insufficient inguiry.

34 The exclusion of the Coronial jurisdiction by the Secretary of State and
his decision to call a public inguiry outside the auspicas of the Public
Inquiries Act 1921 also had the effect of meaning that witnesses did
not provide their evidence under oath and therefore on pain of
contempt of court. 511 (2) Coroners Act 1988 states:

“The coroner shall, at the first sitting of the inquest, examine
on oath concerning the death all persons who tender
evidence as o the facts of the death and all persons having
knowledge of those facls whom he considers it expadient to
gxamine.”

This irregular featura of the procedure adopted in the Hution Inguiry
again undermines the integrity of the evidence presented to Lord
Hutton and inherently thereforathe conclusions he reaches, giving rise
to a requirement of a fullinquest into the circumstances and causes of
Or Kelly's death with the benefit of the usual rules of evidence in fha
Coroners Courts.

35 Moreover, the fact_of the inapplicability of the Coroners Court also had
the fundamental impact of denying to Lord Hutton the power to compel
witnesses available to Coroners in nomal inquest proceadings. As
such, Lord Hutton was prevented from examining witnesses —includng
Dr Kelly's dentist, who was not called despite it being reported that Dr
Kelly's dental records went missing from her practice very shorly after

=l
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hiz death andthen reappeared days later) and Superintendent Young,
head of the Thames Valley Folice's investigative team = and thus from
drawing aut potzntially vital evidancs as 1o the extent and nature af the
polica investigation Into Or Kelly's death.

36.The lack of applicability of the rules of evidence of the Coroners Cour
also had the consequence that the evidence provided by witnesses
was not tested in the normal way through cross-examination by the
representatives of other properly interested persons to the
procsedings. Evidence was accapled, with miner clarifications only, at
face value and without challenge, just one flaw In the procedural
framework of the Hutton Inquiry which had the consequence of
rendering the inquiry insufficient in i#s breadth, reach and
thoroughness.

37_Asignificant instance of the failure to cross-examine, leaving important
evidence untested. is to be found in Lord Hutton's treatment of Dr
Kelly's alleged ingestion of coproxamal prior 1o his death. It was
assumed that, as Mrs Kelly had been prescrbed coproxamaol, the
emply blister packs of these tablets found in Dr Kelly's jacket pocket
must have balonged to her. However, this was never establishad
adegquataly at the inquine. It was not establishad whether Mrs Kelly
would normally have had such a number of tablets, whether she had
recenlly oblained a repeat prescription or when and from where the
tablets had been dispensed.

38 More significantly, however, the evidence of the toxicologist, Dr Alex
Allan, as io the ingestion and the levels of Paracetarnol and
dextropropoxyphene in Orkelly's blood after death were not subjected
to scrutiny. The blood concentrations detecled in Dr Allan's report
indicales a level above the tharapeutic but below the laxic range.
Howaver, ha finds thal the residue of enly 1/5 of a tablet was found in
Oir Kally's stomach. The timing of tha tests is unknown, a5 15 the time of
death, Eolh are essential inreaching any conclusions as fo the levels
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in Dr Kelly's blood at the time of his death and therefore his intenfion or
othenwise to Kill himself, clearly of fundamental significance inreaching
a verdict of suicide. However, Dr Allan was not pressed on such
matters, nordid Lord Hutton look into them in any altemative manner,
leaving a significant gap in the forensic analysis which would be
necessary to enable Lord Hutton safely o arrive at the conclusion he
did. That such is the case was demonstrated clearly when, in
September 2004, ihe British Medical Journal forensic exparis remarked
that the level of Paracetamol and dextropropoxyphene in Dr Kelly's
blood should not have been taken as an accurate indicator of the
amount allegedlyingested DrFmost and his colleanues highlighted this
in a lefter to The Guardian newspaper on 28 September 2004, a copy
of which is included at Appendix 9 to this memaorial.

29.A further fundamental element which stood to be provad on the basis
of the evidence before Lord Hutton &t the inguiry in order to reach the
conclusionthat Dr Kelly had killed himselfis the specificintentto do so.
Lord Hutten safisfied himsealf of this on the basis of the evidence of
Professor Hawton at the inquiry. Howewver, in 50 doing, he failed
properly to engage with the possibility that Or Kelly had not in fact
intended fo kill himself, It is a fundamenial tenet of the recording of a
vardict of suicide in Coronial procsedings to prove bevond a.
reasonable doubt“intent to die®. Itis the memorialist's position that, on
the basis before Lord Hutton and in light of his failure to press
Professor Hawton on this point, that the requisite intent was not
apparentin Dr Kelly's actions priorfo the discovery of his body: he had
made plans te see his daughter on the evening of 17 July 2002 and
had not put his affairs in order. Further uncerainty is cast on the
guestion of intent to die by the unanswered questions, highlighted
above, in relation to the number of tablets of coproxamal allegediy
taken by Dr Kelly and the levels of Paracetamol and
dextropropoxyphens in his blood according to the toxicology reports.
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40 Moreover, recent lefiers from expert psychiatrists Professor Colin
Fritchard and Dr Phillip Timms have since highlighted respectively the
apparent lack of intent and moreoverthe very unusual mode of alleged
suicide apparent in this case: the cutting of one wrist. Copies of thesa
letters are attached at Appendix 10 and 11.

41.It is the memaoralists position that = given this failure propery to
angage with e question — tha finding of “intent to die” could not have
been reached on the evidence available to Lord Hutton and so the
verdict of suicide cannot be deemed to be safe.

The deaih cartifi

42 Since the conclusion of the Hutbon Inguiry and the closure of the
Caronial proceedings, it has become Enown that the final d2ath
certificate in relation to Dr Kelly's death was registered on 13 August
20032. This is despite the fact that the cause and circumstances of Dr
Kelly's death, the subject of the Hutlon Inguiry, had scarcely starlzd
hearing evidence and Dr Hunt, the Home Office pathologist who
carried out the post-moriem, had vet to provide his evidence to Lord
Hutton. Accordingly, it appears that the cause of death, which Lord
Hution was purporediytrying to esiablishthrough hisinguiry, had been
‘eslablished”-in private - and registered long before his findings were
published in January 2004, Additianally, It appears that this daath
ceriificate was registered without nofification to the inquiny or to the
public: no mention of its existence or registration was made during the
inquiry proceedings, norwas it presented in evidence.

43 Mareover, the death cerificate which was regislered was highly
irreqular. The proper form of the daath cenificatz i set out at Form 22
of Schedule 4 to the Coroners Rules 1984 It requires that the following
miatters be found (a5 relevant):

“(1) Mame of the deceased (if known):
(2) Injury or disease causing death:
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(3) Time, place and circumstances at or in which injury was
sustained
{4} Conclusion of the jury/coronar.,

The death cerificate completed in raspect of Dr Kelly's death, and
found at Appendix 1. cleardy fails to recard such information.

44 The place of death, required under (2) above, is not identified. In cases
where the place of death cannot be ascerained, it is normal practice
for the Coroner to make a statement on the death cedificate to this
effect. There is no such statement an Dr Kelly's death cerificate.

25 An inquest is said to have taken place on 14 August 2003 However,
although the inguest had been cpened and then adjoumned by the
Coraner, no inquest had yet been conduded and no verdict or findings
as to the circumstances of Dr Kelly's death reached or mads

46.The cerificate itselfis not signed by a Coroner or a doctor as reguired.
47 The date of death is given as 18 July 2003, despite the fact, detailed
below, that this is far from being clear, given the inexplicable and

considerable delay in taking the rectal body temperature.

428 For these reasons, the regulanty of the death cerificate is highly
questionable.

Irequlzrities in the Caronial proceedings

49 As indicated above, the Lord Chancellor stepped in, on 13 August
2003 and after the Coroner had opened proceedings in the Coroners
Court on 21 July 2003, to request that the Coraner's proceedings be
adjoumed under 517A Coroners Act 1988 pendingthe outcome of the
Hutton Inguiry. Mot finding any exceptional reason to refuse such a
recjuest, the Coroner propery adjoumed the inguest. However, the

memuarialist understands that, despite having adjoumned his inquest
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and thereby surrendered jurlsdiction to investigatz, the Coronsr was
then invited a mesting with the Department for Constitutional Affairs at
which he askedfor permissiontotake further evidence fram Or Hunt in
private before recording a cause of death. If frue, this represents a
clear attempt by the Corener to resume his investigation onca
adjoumed unders17A Coroners Act 1988, That such a resumption was
attempted and that evidence may then have been faken in private =
and was not thean revealed by the Coroner on the resumption of the
inguest on 16 Karch 2004 = represants a significant irregularity in the
proceedings which casts doubt over the integrity of the decision of the
Coronar not to resume the inguest and thus requiring that a full, frank
and open inquest be held.

Oiher apparent ireqularities
50.1 is widaly known that, during his investigations, Laord Hutton visited
mrs Kelly at home. It is presumed thatthis was to take her evidence as
to the clrcumstances of Or Kelly's death and the days leading up to it.
Whilst this is not proscribed by the Coroner's Rules and cannot be
impugned as being an irregularity initself, itis a measure adopted only
in exceptional circumstances by a Coroner. Howaver, it would ba
imperative thata Coroner undertaking any such visit would then, in the
interests of justice and fransparency, provide details of that evidencein
opan Court. Following this meeting, Lord Hutton madea no mention and

provided no detail as to the content of the statement taken from Mrs
Kelly. As nothing is known of the substance or content of the meeling
held by Lord Hutton with Mrs Kelly, it is not possible to say definitively
whelher any evidence was taken in this meeting (although itis hard to
imagine that it was not) and thus not possible 1o say definitively
whether any irregularity therefare exists. Howewver, RMrs Kelly's
evidence as 1o Dr Kelly's slate of mind in the days leading up 10 his
death would, an any vigw, be consldered vital to a Coroner and, if any
was taken, it was absolutely contrary to the interests of justice If Lord
Hutton then failed to share its content with what was a public inquiry.
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The 70 vear recommendation
51.As5 previously indicated, it has emearged that, at some time afier tha

conclusion of his inguiry, Lord Huiton made a recommendation, in
private, the existence of which did not become known to the public until
January 2010, requiring that the materials relating to Dr Kally's death
and, in particular, the post-mortem photographs, reports and medical
notes should not be disclosed to the public wntil 70 years after the
conclusion of the inquiry (that is, until 2074}, This was a highly unusual
recommendation and nota power availabletoihe Coronerunder either
the Coronars Act 1988 orthe Coroners Rulesi1984. lis intended effect,
according to Lord Hutton, was to protect the Kelly family from further
upset whichmight be caused by those who might have wished furiher
to investigate Dr Kelly's death. However, its aciual effect has been that
of "suppressing’ from the public domain vital raw material information in
relation to Dr Kelly's cause of death and thus preventing any such
independant investigation. This secret recommendation for secrecy
and lack of transparency is highly irregular and would have been
impossible inthe context of Coronial proceedings. It was only possible
by virtue of the fact that the Hutton Inguiry was an inguiry called out of
the inherent power of the Secretary of State for Constitutional Affairs
rather than the usual, inguisiterial Coronial proceedings or the much
more unusual statulory public inguiry under the Public Inguiries Act
1921 investigation, both of which are creatures of siatute and thus
governed by strict statutonr rules.

Insufficiency of inguiry
The reach of the Histlon Inguiry
52.The Hufton Inguiry was said by Lord Falconer (as Lord Chancellor) o
be adequate to salisfy the requirements of 2 Corenial investigation into
the death of Dr Kelly. Indasd, the public was lad to believe by Lord
Falconer that the powers and reach of the Hutton Inguiry would go
bevond those powers available to Coroners under the stalute and the
Coroners Rules in order 1o Jay bare the facls and circumstancas of Dr
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Kelly's death, However, in assessing this statament against the facts
available, it is apparent that this has not been proved o be the case
and In fact serious doubls remain over whether key alemeants of the
duties of a Coroner were indeed fulfilled = and therefore whether an
adequate inquiny was aclually conducted — into Dr Kelly's death.

53.The Coroner's dulies at an inguest are set out at Rule 36 Coroners
Rules 1984

*(1) The proceadings and evidance at an inguast shall ba
directad solely to asceraining the following matters, namealy—
(a) who the deceased was:;
(D) howy, when and where he came by his death;
(c) the pariculars for the fime being required by the
Reaistration Acts to be registered.”

The information therefore required can be summarised as:
1) the Identity of the deceased,
2)the place the deceasad came by his death;
3) the time of death;
4)ihe causze of death;
5} a verdict as to by what means the deceased came by his
deatn.

54_In reviewing the findings of the Hutlon Inguiry: the place of Dr Kelly's
death is not stated; the fime of Or Kelly's death is recorded in very
broadterms and inreliance on evidence which iiself is tainted or at the
vary least rendared less accurate than it could have baen by
unexplained- andinexplicable — delay on the par of Dr Hunt; a cause
of dealh is recorded but, as set out by this memorial, this is now
subject to grave doubts, as is the “verdict” recordad by Lord Hutton of
suicide. As such, it cannot be said that the reguirements of the

Coronial process detailed sbove have been met, nor the Coraner's
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statufory duties fulfilled, by Lord Hutton's Inquiry at the behest of the
Secretary of State.

55 Moreover, it s evident, from the transcripts of the Hutton Inquiry
available atthe hyperlinkinciuded above under section 2, thatthe time
spent addressing the medical evidence in iha proceedings was
disproperionately insignificant in comparison with that spant on the
incidants leading up o Dr Kally's death. Including time qiven aver lo
taking evidence from the toxicologist, Or Alex Allan, approximately hall
of one day out of 24 full days of hearings was taken up by medical
evidence, As illustrated above, in relation to tha levels of Paracatamol
and dextropropoxyphene present in Dr Kelly's blood after death, the
manifest failure to engage sufficiently with or to t2stin any way the
medical evidence provided by Drs Hunt and Allan represents a
significant shorcoming in the adequacy of the investigation carried out
by Lord Huiton. The proper consideration and festing of medical and
toxicology evidence put ferward in suspicious cases such as thatof Dr
Kelly is cantral lo the Coroner’s investigations but in Lord Hulten's
invastigations, tha scrutiny to which it was subjected was unacceptably
limp.

S6.1t is further vour memerialist's case that vital witnesses who would
have been in a posiion to pravide valuable evidance to the Hulten
Inquirywere not callad and that the investigative funclion of the inquiry,
said by Lord Falconerfo be intendedfo be farther reaching than would
ba possible under the Coroners Act 1988, in fact fell far short of being
an adequate or sufficientinguiry into the circumstances surrounding Dr
Keliy's death.

&57.1t iz tharefore submitted that the conclusions reached by tha Huiton

Inguiry as to the cause of Dr Kelly's death cannot be considered safe
and hat a full Coronial inquest is essential.

The patholonist's examinafion of the scene and post-mortam examination
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38.In his evidence to the Hutton Inquirg, Or Hunt stated that he carmied out

3

o

the reclal body temperature measurement a1 7.15pm on 18 July 2003,
It is remarkable that this was some 7 hours after he was first given
access to the location where Dr Kelly's body was found (12, 10pm) and
some 5 hours after he was given access to canduct a full examination
of the scene (at 2. 10pm). This delay in taking the body's rectal
temperatura was not challenged by Lord Hutton. The significance of
this failure to seek an explanation for this delay lies in the fact that, as
the body cools after death, the langer the delay in taking the rectal
bady temperature, the wider the time-window within which death may
have occurred becomes, meaning that the accurate assessment of a
time of death becomes mare and mare dificult as time passes. A body
temperature reading taken several hours earier would have enabled a
more accurate time of death to have been ascertained, yet this was naot
done and the failure to do so went unchallenged at the hearings.

. Since the conclusion of the Hutton Inquiry, Freadom of Information Act

requests - made by MP Morman Baker in 2007 - have shown that the
knife with which Dr Kelly is alleged to have used to cul his wrist
showed no sign of Or Kelly's own — orindeed any — fingerpnnts. This is
despite there being no evidence that Or Kelly had been weanng gloves
prior to or during his alleged attempts to cut his wrist nor were any
dloves discoverad atthe scena. This was a curious point which would
have been apparent to Lard Hutton at the time of his inquiry had proper
investigation been made and one absolutely relevant to astablishing
whether Dr Keally did indead cut his left wrist in the way cancluded by
Lord Hutton

G0.0r Hunt's post-mortem led him to conclude that Dr Kelly died between

4.13pm on 17 July 2003 and 1.13am on 18 July 2003. However,
information obtained fram Thames Valley police by a Mr Garrick Alder
under an Freedom of Information Act request has indicated that a
police helicopter equipped with thermal-imaging technalagy flew over
the exact spot where Dr Kelly was assumed by Lord Hulton to have
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killed himsaIf at 2.50am on 18 July 2003 without detecting his body.
Although Assistant Chief Constable Michas| Page gave evidence othe
Hutton Inguiry indicating that a helicopter using thermal-imaging
technology had been deployed in the search, Lord Hulton did not delve
any further to establish the search routes of the helicopler or o
question why the thermal-imaging had apparently lailed to detect Dr
Kelly's bedywhich, at 2.50am, would have been substantially closer o
the normal body temperatura of 37 degrees Celsius than the 24
degrees Celsius recorded at 7.15pm the same day.

Rejection of evidence and refusal by the Coroner to resume the inquest

61.Upon considering and examining Lord Hutton's findings, published on
28 January 2010, Dr Frost and his colleagues very quickly came to the
view (for the reasons set out in the report of Dr Frost et al at Appendix
12) that it would have baen highly improbable for Dr Kelly 1o have died
frem the injurles sald to have been the cause of his death by
haemorrhage, As such, Dr Frost and several colleagues wrote on
several occasions and as matters of urgency to the Coroner, Mr
Gardiner, o express grave concems at the conclusions reached by
Lord Hutton and to present their professional view as to why the
conclusiens were incorrect and unsafe, A copy of this leter togeather
with copies of other relevantlefters, to which the Coroner did not reply,
arg attached at Appeandix 13.

62.0r Frost then wrote again to the Coroner in conjunction with 5 other
medical professionals expert in the relevant areas o present their
agreed view that the conclusions reached as to Dr Kelly's cause of
death and thereforethe conclusions of the Hutlon Inquiry should not be
accepted and that exceptional reasons existed as to why the Coroner
should hold & full Inguast into the daath. Again, no response was
received. A copy of this letter is enclosed at Appendix 14,

G3.Thereafter, on 16 March 2004, as already illustrated, Mr Gardiner held
a further haaring at which ha expressed the view that he was “happy”

a7
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with the conclusions reached by Lard Hutton's repart and that therefore
he saw no exceptional reasons, as requirad by 517AM4) Coroners Act
1988, to resume the inguest and thus concluded that he would not do
5.

64.The Coroner's refusal to respond to the letters of Dr Frost and his
fellow medical experts and his apparent refusal o consider the
avidence thay put befare him in deciding whethar ar not exceptional
reasons existed which dictated that he should resume the inquest
consiitutes a rejection of relevant and persuasive evidence which may
havemada a material and substantive differenca lo the oulcome of the
Coronial proceedings, had they been properly considered by the
Coroner in the exercise of his duty under s174A. If, indeed, he did
consider the letters sent by Dr Frast and his colleagues, the Coroner
made no mention of this In his heanng. Or Frest and his collzagues
also take the view that the Coroner's declarations had the effect of
giving the impression tothe publicthat Lord Hutlon's conclusions were
of the same quality as might be reached by the Corener himself.

65.FPerhaps most alarming, in this context, is the interview given by the
Caoroner to the Mail en Sunday in excess of two weeks prier to the
hearing at which he concluded his inguest in which he stated that he
was seeking “closura” to this matter, apparently indicating that he had
already reached the view that there ware no exceplional reasons for
continuing his Inguast despitz not having heard the parties at the
hearing andthe continuing representations of the doctors as to the fact
that the cause of death recorded and the conclusions of the Hutton
Inquiny were unsafe.

Mew evidence
66.5ince the conclusion of the Hutton Inguiry, Or Frost and a number of
eminantmedical professional colleagues have maintained fundamental
doubts as to the findings of the Hution Inquiry and, in paricular, the
meadical conclusions reached by the pathologist, DF Hunt. A copy of
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their medical report, signed by all, can be found at Appendix 12. They
conclude, in broad terms, that it would be highly improbable for Dr
Kelly to have died as a result of the pathological factors given by Dr
Hunt as the cause of death. They say, therefore, that the findings of
Lord Huttan are, therefore, at the very least unsafe

G7. Addtionally, and significantly, Or Hunt has, on 22 August 2010, come

forward in The Sunday Times to provide further information relating to
his examination of the scena at which Dr Kelly's body was found and
his post-mortem examination which is inconsistent with and goes
bevaond that he providedin evidence to the Huttan Inquiry. Mot only is
thiz highly irregular, it also confinms Dr Frost's concerns — sharad by
his colleagues = that the Hutton Inguiry did not go as far as would have
a Coroner's inquest in examining, testing and exhausting the evidence
provided by the witnesses he called

G8.In his evidence to the Hutton Inquiry, Or Hunt stated that there was:

“blondstaining on the clothes [...] including in the sleeve of the
Barbour jacket on the lefi. [...] There was some staining [...]
over the left armm. That was the heaviest staining, really,
including within the sleeve of the jacket. [...] The most obvious
staining was around the left wrist. [..] There was an area of
bloodstaining 1o his left side running across the undergrowth
and the soil and | estimated it was over an area of 2 to 3 fest

maximum in length”™.

However, in an interview given to the Sunday Times on 22 August
2010, Or Hunt is reported as sayingthat, “in actual fact there were big,
thick clots of blood inside the sleeve, which came down aver the wrist.
and a lot of blood soaked into the ground”. The later evidence would
appear to be inconsistent with that provided to the inquiry, as his
descrptions indicate that there was in fact a large quantity of blood
around and an DrEelly's body. It also goes further in suggesting that
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“a lot of blood™ had "soaked into the ground”, that *[DC Coe and the
pararmedics] might not have seen it, but it was thare and | noted itin
my repor”. Mo evidence as to this was provided by Dr Hunt at the
Hutton Inquiry, nor has the post-morem report vet been made public,

69.0r Hunt continued by saying that he had looked “at every millimetre of
skin [...] Tar any punciure marks and so forth, any sign of skuldugagery
— between tha fingers, the toes. undar the nose, behind the ears, here,
there and evenswhere — to 522 if you can find someathing that's out of
kilter, There was nothing®, However, it is your memenialist's position
that, although there was a reported 'absence of evidence' of any foul
play (paricularly in the context of any needlamarks), this ‘absance of
gevidence” does not constitute 'evidence of absence’ and fthat
accordingly, proper Coronial assessment of the evidence provided by
Or Hunt and all the relevant witnesses 15 essentlal in carrying out an
adequate inguiry,

TO.Finally, Dr Hunt also provided additional evidence in relation fo the
alleged narrowing of Dr Kelly's coronary arleries to that he had
provided to the Hutton Inguiry. In The Sunday Times aricle of 22
August 2010, Dr Hunt provides informatien that bwa of Or Kelly's main
corenary arteries were 70-80% narower than normal, creaiing a
significant risk of cardiacarmrest “If he had dropped deadin the canfean
at Porfon Down and yvou had seen his coronary arteries, you would
have had a very good reason to believe that was the only reason he
died™. His condition is said by Dr Hunt to have greally reduced the
ability of nis heart to withstand sudden blood loss and alse mada him
maore susceptible to stress. The weight placed by Dr Hunt on the
coronary afery disease in more recent information he has provided is
in stark confrast to the evidence he gave o Lord Hulton in which he
indicated that this *may have played some small part in the rapidity of
death but [was] not the major part in the cause of death”.
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710t Is yvour memeralist's view that this sudden provision of fresh
evidence by Dr Hunt reflects an anxiety on the pathologist's part that
the evidence provided o the Hutton Inquiry in relation to the scene of
the discovery of Dr Kelly's body and in his examination of Dr Kelly's
body was insufficient to suppaort the conclusion he had reached as to
tha causa of death.

T2 Further fresh evidence has also been provided by David Barlleft, the
ambulance fechnician who arrived at the scene shority after the
discovery of Dr Kelly's body. Inan interview with The Mail on Sunday
an 12 Septembsr 2010 (which can be found at Appendix 15), Mt
Barllett stated that, on arriving at the scene, he noted that Dr Kelly's
“leftsleeve was rolled up and you could see a wound with some dried
blood around it”, This is in direct contradiction o the evidence providad
by Or Hunt fo The Sunday Times on 22 August 2010, in which he
stated that “there wara big, thick clats of blood inside the sleeve, which
came down over the wrisl” (emphasis added). This is an imporant
confradiction in evidence which was, again, not explored by Lord
Hutton in the inquiry and which raises questions both as to the
accuracy of the evidence provided by witnesses and also to the
sufficiency of the inquiry itself.

734 Bartlett then continued in The Mail on Sunday that, when he arrived
at the scane, Dr Kelly “was lying flat out some distance from the tree,
He definitely wasn't lz2aning againstit. [...] When | was there the body
was far enough awayfrom the tree for someone to gat behind IL | know
that because| stood there whenwe were using the electrodesto check
his heart. Later | l[earned that the dog team said they hiad found him
proppedup againstthe free, He wasn'twhen we gotihere, If the earier
witnesses are saying that, then the body has obviously been moved®,
The “earlerwitnessas” refamed to by Mr Bartlett are the searchears who
discoverad Dr Kelly's body, Louise Holmes and Paul Chapman, who
each gave evidence to the Hutton inquirythat Dr Kelly's body had been
found propped up against a tree.
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T74.0C Graham Coe, one of the group of Thames Valley police officers
first o arrive at tha scene, has also, in September 2010, provided
further information as to the evidenca he had providad to the Hutten
Inquiry. In evidence at 1o the Hutton Inquiry, DC Coe was clear in
stating that on the moming of the discover of Dr Kelly's body, he was
accompanied only a single colleague, DC Colin Shields. Howewer, in
an interview with the Daily Mail reported on 9 August 2010, DC Coe,
now retired, explains that there had been a frainee police officer
present with he and OC Shields. Although it is not clear as to whether
this new evidenca in itself is of 2 material nature, it again goss to the
point that the questioning to which Lord Hutton subjected witnesses
was less than thorough and reflects the palpable insufficiency of the
inifial inguiry. A copy of this article can be found at Appendix 16.

75.This new evidence, together with the expar opinion provide by Dr
Frost and his colleagues, raises significant new questions as o the
volume and distribution of blood atthe scene, whetherthe scane of the
discovery of Dr Kellv's bady had b2en disturbed prior to the armval of
sCEne examiners and, once more, the sufficiency of Lord Hutlon's
“In considering this provision [s13] it is not necessary to
show that a new inguest would reach a differant verdict,
only that it might do so. Even if a different verdict is not, in
fact, reached by a different coroner, #his would not negate
the request for a second inquest under 13 Coroner Act
1938 (see Re Rapier [1983] QB 26)".

TG, 15 submitted, in llght of the procedural deficizncias and insulficiency
of the investigation of the Hulton Inquiry, the rejection of evidence by
the Coroner on the Lord Chancellors communication to him of the
findings of the Hutton Inquiry and the compelling new evidence
provided in the form of the experi view of Dr Frost and his colleagues,
and for allthe reasons expounded above, that the conclusions reached
by Lord Hutton and adepted by the Caronar are not safe.
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77 _Moreover, for allthe above failings and reasans —and in paricular the
Coroner's gross failure to hold a substantive inquest into Dr Kelly's
death, as required by s2(1) Coroners Act 1988 — it is submitted that tha
Uniled Kingdom government has not, as yel, fulfilled its invesligative
duties under Aricle 2 of the European Comvention on Hurman Rights.

78.0r Frost and his collzagues take the view thal, in light of tha
information presented in this memorial, compelling grounds exist for
the holding of a new inquestin order o reach accurate and empirical
conclusions as 1o the death of Dr Kelly. In the words of Christopher
Clarke QC, Counsel tothe Inquiry for the Saville Inquiry, “the tribunal's
task is to discover, as far as humanly possible in the circumstances,
the truth: not the truth as people see it, not the truth as people would
like it to be; but the truth, pure and simple, however complex, painful or
unacceptableto whomsoeverthat iruth may be. The truth has a light of
its own".

79.1t Is consaquently submitted that it 15 necessary and desirable in tha
inerests of justice for thare 10 be a fresh, Tull inquest into Dr Kelly's
death before a different Coroner. The memadalist therefore humbly
requests that the Attorney-General exerclse his power under 513
Coroners Act 1988 to apply 1o the High Court fo seek an order 1o
quashthe inguestheld by CoronerMicholas Gardiner in 2003-4 and to
erder a naw ingquest inte Dr Kelly's death,
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